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he University of Medical Sciences is now slightly over one year old.  During this period, it has witnessed 
substantial growth and development that we can now proudly beat our chest and say that this noble TUniversity has come to stay.  Let me begin therefore by paying tribute to the originator and the brain behind 

the idea of this University  which is no person other than the highly revered and progressive Executive Governor of 
Ondo State, His Excellency, Dr. Olusegun Mimiko, MB, ChB (OAU, Ile-Ife), CON  the only human Iroko in Nigeria. 
Surely, when the history of this University is written, and the development of pioneering health infrastructures in 
this country is choreographed, the name Dr. Olusegun Raman Mimiko will ring loud and clear.

I also wish to thank those who have worked tirelessly behind the scenes to make this project a reality.  And just a 
few will be mentioned here.  HRM Kabiyesi Oba Victor Kiladejo Jilo III has worked on this project as if his very 
existence depends on it. Sir, we are indeed, very grateful and we pray that the Almighty Lord will continue to bless 
and protect you as you take the Ondo Kingdom to greater heights of development.  The Chairman of Council, 
Distinguished Emeritus Professor O. O. Akinkugbe is not only the Chairman, he is also the Chief Advisor of the 
University, and the Chief Architect of many of the milestones identified for the University. We are very grateful to 
you sir for what you have been to this University.  

I also wish to thank the Commissioner of Health, Dr. Dayo Adeyanju, his pioneering role in ensuring the take-off of 
the University can never be forgotten.  We are also grateful to the Commissioner of Education, Arc Jide Adejuyigbe 
and the Commissioner for Finance, Chief Yele Ogundipe  who have continued to function as unpaid Chief Disciples 
of the University. I would also like to acknowledge the uncanny foresightedness of the much respected High Chief 
Olusola Adeduro, the Sasere of Ondo Kingdom. Chief Adeduro is not only a member of the Governing Council of the 
University, he is also an ambassador plenipotentiary of the University. Indeed, High Chief Adeduro has not only 
donated some funds to enable the payment of the School fees of one of our students, he has donated his entire 
seating allowance as a member of the University Governing Council as a Trust-fund to assist the University's future 
development.  

The foundation of a new University is only as strong as the quality of its founding Administrators, Faculty, Staff and 
Students. I will like to thank the founding Registrar, Librarian, Bursar along with other Administrative Directors, 
Deans, Faculty, Staff and Students for their sacrifice and contribution to making this vision a reality. The history of 
the University cannot be told without the leadership, strength, perseverance and support you have given to this 
University, you will be remembered by generations to come for your role in the establishment of this institution.   

I will like to acknowledge the many donours to the University under the “Friends of UNIMED Network (FUN) and 
the Friends of UNIMED Fund (FUF)” for the purpose of obtaining the resources to grow the University to attain its 
mission and vision statements in light of the global recession and the dwindling Nigerian Federal and State 
resources. I would like to acknowledge the Ondo Development Committee (ODC) for all its support, donations, 
visitations and promise to help take the university to world class status. I would be remiss if I do not acknowledge 
and highlight the nobility of purpose and patriotism of one man.  He is the revered Chief I. F. Akintade, the Saibi 
Gogou of Ondo Kingdom.  Chief Akintade is not only a Super-Friend of the University but a leading benefactor 
because of his magnanimity. Chief Akintade's donation will go a long way in shaping the futures of our current and 
future graduates and the effects of his generous donation will be felt for generations to come.

Thanks to all once again! 

Prof. Friday Okonofua, FAS
Vice Chancellor
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Arise, O Compatriots, 
Nigeria’s call obey

To serve our fatherland
With love and strength and faith

The labour of our heroes past
Shall never be in vain

To serve with heart and might
One nation, bound in freedom

Peace and Unity

O God of creation, 
direct our noble cause
Guide our leaders right,

Help our youth the truth to know
In love and honesty to grow

And living just and true
Great lofty heights attain

To build a nation, where peace
And justice shall reign

I pledge to Nigeria my Country
To be faithful loyal and honest

To serve Nigeria with all my strength
To defend her unity

And uphold her honour and glory
So help me God.

NATIONAL  PLEDGE

NATIONAL ANTHEM
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VISION

MISSION

CORE VALUES

The vision of UNIMED is to be a thriving medical and health Sciences University locally, 
nationally and internationally recognized for excellence and innovation in health education 
and research and for ability to translate research findings for the improvement of health in 

communities with high burden of diseases.

The mission of the University of Medical Sciences (UNIMED) is to provide exceptional 
quality and comprehensive health care and integrated education and research in all health-
related sciences, to expand access to compassionate and high quality health care for under-
served populations, and to lead the scientific pathway for reducing the burden of diseases 

in our areas of operation.

?Excellence & Discovery
?Innovation and Transparency

?Diversity & Inclusion
?Respect & Collegiality

VISION, MISSION, OBJECTIVES AND CORE VALUES
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THE VISITOR 

His Excellency,

Dr. Olusegun Mimiko, CON
Executive Governor of Ondo State and The Visitor
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PRO-CHANCELLOR

Emeritus Prof. Oladipo O. Akinkugbe, CFR
MD, D.Phil, FRCP, FWACP, FAS, NNOM, Officer de I'Ordre

National de la Republique de Cote d'Ivoire
Pro-Chancellor and Chairman of Governing Council
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rofessor Friday Okonofua, MD, PhD, ad eundem FRCOG, is a medical doctor and a professor of obstetrics 
and gynecology at the University of Benin for many years. He is a fellow of the West African College of PSurgeons, the Nigerian Postgraduate Medical College, the International College of Surgeons, the 

International Health program at Harvard University, and the Royal College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists.  He 
also has PhD in International Health from the Karolinska Institute in Stockholm, Sweden. He is a Fellow of both the 
Nigerian Academy of Science (FAS) as well as the New York Academy of Science.

Okonofua commenced his academic career as Lecturer 1 in the Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology at the 
Obafemi Awolowo University in 1986. He served as the Acting Head of Department between 1987 and 1992, 
and rose to the post of Professor in 1992. He transferred his services to the University of Benin in 1996, where he 
had been the Head of Department, Dean, Provost, and member of the University's Governing Council.

He has also been Secretary of the Faculty of Obstetrics and Gynecology of the National Postgraduate College of 
Nigeria, as well as the Secretary-General of the Society of Gynecology and Obstetrics of Nigeria. Between April 
2005 and November 2009, he served as the Executive Director of the International Federation of Gynecology and 
Obstetrics (FIGO), supervising projects management in the 110 member countries of the organization. He was 
also a Honorary Adviser on Health to President Olusegun Obasanjo from July 2006 to May 29, 2007.

Professor Okonofua is a champion of women's health, a discipline where he has published more than 200 refereed 
articles. 

He is a recipient of more than 40 research grants, and he is a member of several international organizations and 
committees, including the editorial board of the British Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology, where he has served 
for more than 12 years. He has attended and presented scientific papers in 100 conferences in up to 40 countries 
around the world. He is a reviewer to 20 international journals, and a technical consultant to many international 
agencies, including the World Health Organisation, the Macarthur Foundation and the Ford Foundation.

He is a recipient of several honors, including the Distinguished Alumnus Award of the Obafemi Awolowo 
University, Special Achievers Award by the Nigerian Television Authority, Distinguished Services Award by the 
Society of Gynecology and Obstetrics of Nigeria, Award of “the most outstanding professor of the people” by the 
Students Union Government of the University of Benin.

He was also recently honoured by the VC of UNIBEN for contributions to the success of the university where he 
served in many capacities for many years before he was appointed the pioneer VC of UNIMED by Governor 
Olusegun Mimiko. 

Okonofua was also on December 2, 2016 honoured with the chieftaincy title of Gbekoleke of Ondo Kingdom by the 
Osemawe of Ondo Kingdom, Oba (Dr) Victor Kiladejo.  
He is married with children.

VICE-CHANCELLOR, UNIMED

Professor Friday Okonofua, FAS
B.Sc. (Hons) (Ife), MB ChB (Ife), PhD (Karolinska),

FWACS, FMCOG, FICS, FRCOG addendum (UK)
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REGISTRAR, UNIMED

orn in Ondo on October 20, 1953, Dr. (Mrs.) Eunice 'Funke Oyebade attended St. Louis Secondary School, 
Ondo between 1967  1971 for her Secondary education, University of Ibadan for Bachelor of Education in BBotany between 1974 -1978, She later bagged her Masters degree in Educational Administration 1985, 

had her Post graduate programme in Doctor of Philosophy in Education management in 2000s  and was equally at 
the National Institute for Policy and Strategic Studies (NIPSS) Kuru, Jos, in 2006 where she bagged an award as 
Award for the overall best graduating Participants for Course 28 of 2006 as well as became recipient of the 
prestigious MNI title.

From a humble beginning of an Administrative Officer I in November 1982 at the Federal University of Technology, 
Akure (FUTA), Dr. Oyebade rose through ranks to become Registrar, serving a two term between June 2001 and 

thJune 2011. Between 1st June, 2012 to 17  July, 2014, she was Director, Advancement Centre; Secretary to the 
University Advancement Board of the same institution.

th stBetween 5  June, 2011 and 31  May, 2012 she was on sabbatical as Director of Advancement office, Adekunle 
Ajasin University, Akungba, Akoko. She is presently a member of the governing council of the institution.

Despite being a University Administrator whose job has majorly revolved around administration, Dr. Oyebade has 
supervised no fewer than eight (8) Masters of Business Administration Students till graduation at Federal 
University of Technology, Akure (FUTA).

She is a Fellow of the Nigeria Institute of Management, Institute of Personnel Management of Nigeria, Society of 
Educational Administrators of Nigeria, Chartered Institute of Public Administrators of Nigeria and The Managers 
Institute of Chartered Training, among others.

She is married with children.

Dr. (Mrs.) Eunice F. Oyebade, mni 
B.Ed. (Ibadan), M.Ed. (UNIBEN), Ph.D (UNAD)
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ACTING BURSAR, UNIMED

thr. Fabusuyi, Abraham Oladiran was born 30  September, 1960 at Ilesa, Osun State. He started his career 
as an Audit Clerk at Oladipo Ige & Co in 1983 and worked at three other reputable organizations between M1986 to 1989 before joining UNILAG Consult University of Lagos, Akoka as Higher Executive Officer 

(Accts) in 1995. He rose to the position of an Accountant at UNILAG Consult.

He left UNILAG Consult in April 2005 and joined The Federal University of Technology, Akure in May, 2005 as a 
Principal Accountant. As a result of his brilliance in his job he was made the Chief Accountant of The Federal 
University of Technology, Akure in 2008.

He joined University of Medical Sciences Ondo in November 2015 as the Acting Bursar.

Mr. Abraham Fabusuyi holds several academic and professional qualifications- MBA, Fellow Chartered Accountant 
(FCA), Associate, Chartered Institute of Taxation of Nigeria (ACTI) and a Member, Nigerian Institute of Management 
(MNIM)

He is married with three children

Mr. Abraham Oladiran Fabusuyi
HND, Bsc, MBA, NIM, ACTI, FCA
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r. Akinfolarin William Abiodun was born at Odigbo, in Odigbo Local Government Area of Ondo State on 
December 25, 1952. He holds a Bachelor of Library Science from Ahmadu Bello University, Zaria and a MMaster of Library Studies from the University of Ibadan.

He started his career at the Kashim Ibrahim Library, Ahmadu Bello University, Zaria and then joined the services of 
the then Obafemi Awolowo University, Ado-Ekiti (now Adekunle Ajasin University, Akungba-Akoko) in 1983 as a 
Librarian II. He rose to the enviable position of the University Librarian in 2005, a position he occupied till March 
31, 2015. Aside from been a Principal Officer of Adekunle Ajasin University, Akungba-Akoko, he was also a 
member of the Governing Council of the University from 2009-2013.
He is currently on a contract appointment with the University of Medical Sciences, Ondo as the Acting University 
Librarian.

Mr. Akinfolarin as a seasoned Academic, has co-authored many books and published articles in reputable local 
and foreign journals.  He has also attended many local and foreign conferences, workshop and seminars.  He is a 
member of many professional bodies and a Certified Librarian of Nigeria (CLN).

He is a pioneering member of staff of three universities, namely: Obafemi Awolowo University (1983), Ado-Ekiti, 
Adekunle Ajasin University Akungba-Akoko (1999) and University of Medical Sciences, Ondo (2015). He is also a 
recipient of so many awards.

Mr. Akinfolarin is married to Dr. (Mrs.) Comfort A. Akinfolarin a lecturer at the Department of Educational 
Management, Adekunle Ajasin University, Akungba-Akoko.  The marriage is blessed with good children.

LIBRARIAN, UNIMED

Mr. Akinfolarin William Abiodun
B.L.S, Grad. Cert. Edu. (ABU) MLS (Ibadan), CLN
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High Chief Olusola Adeduro

Dr. (Mrs.) Kofo Odusote
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he Emeritus Professor Oladipupo Akinkugbe, CFR, MD, D.Phil, FRCP, FWACP, FAS, NNOM, Officier de 
l'Ordre National de la Republique de Cote d'Ivoire,  is a multiple award-winning and one of the most Trespected and distinguished academic physicians in Nigeria. 

He is Emeritus Professor of Medicine at the College of Medicine, University of Ibadan. He has served on several 
international bodies and he is a member of the World Health Organisation Technical Advisory Committee on 
Health Research as well as an Honorary Fellow of Balliol College, Oxford.

Born in Ondo on July 17, 1933, he attended Government College Ibadan (1946-51), University College Ibadan 
(now University of Ibadan) (1951-55), University of London (1955-58), University of Liverpool (1960), and 
Oxford University (1962-64). He became Professor of Medicine, University of Ibadan (1968); Dean of Medicine 
(1970-74); Visiting Professor of Medicine at Harvard (1974-75); Oxford (1981-82) and Cape Town (1995); 
Principal, then Vice Chancellor, University of Ilorin (1975-78); Vice Chancellor, Ahmadu Bello University (1978-
79); Pro-Chancellor, University of Port Harcourt (1986-90); Foundation Chair, Joint Admissions and 
Matriculation Board (JAMB) and Chairman, Management Board, University College Hospital, Ibadan (2000-
2003). 

He is a member of various international medical and scientific panels, and author of many papers on hypertension 
and renal diseases in national and international journals. In 1989 he received the Searle Distinguished Research 
Award for his contributions to hypertension in black populations; and in 2004 he received the Boehringer 
Ingelheim Award of the International Society of Hypertension. He was made Honorary Fellow of Balliol College, 
Oxford University in 2009 and has Honorary Doctorate from six Nigerian universities, including his alma mater, 
the University of Ibadan. He has also been conferred with traditional chieftaincy titles from Ile-Ife, Ondo, Ibadan 
and Ijebu-Igbo. 

He is married to Professor Folasade Akinkugbe (nee Dina) and they have two sons and a set of grand-twins. 

Prof. Oladipupo Akinkugbe, CFR
MD, D.Phil, FRCP, FWACP, FAS, NNOM, 
Officer de I'Ordre
National de la Republique de Cote d'Ivoire

CHAIRMAN, 
GOVERNING COUNCIL OF UNIMED
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rofessor Tolu Odugbemi hails from Oke-Igbo in Ile-Oluji/Okeigbo Local Government of Ondo State, Nigeria.  
After a brilliant primary and secondary school education, he enrolled in the College of Medicine of the PUniversity of Lagos to read Medicine during which he also registered as a Pioneer Student of Microbiology. 

He emerged with a B.Sc. (Hons) degree Microbiology in 1970 and the MBBS Degree in 1972. He also obtained a 
Diploma in Bacteriology from the University of Toronto, Canada (1976) as well as Doctor of Philosophy Degree 
(Ph.D) University of Sheffield (1978) and Doctor of Medicine (M.D) Degree in 1982 from the University of Lagos 
(UNILAG).  He completed his residency training in Medical Microbiology at the Lagos University Teaching 
Hospital, Idi-Araba and subsequently qualified as a Fellow of the West African College of Physicians (FWACP) in 
1976. He is also a Foundation fellow of the National Postgraduate Medical College (FMCPath) and a Fellow of the 
Royal College of Pathologists, U.K (FRCPath).

He was the foundation Professor and Head of the Department of Medical Microbiology and Parasitology, Faculty of 
Health Sciences, University of Ilorin from 1983-1985, Professor and Head Department of Microbiology and 
Parasitology, College of Medicine of the  University of Lagos at various times. Honorary Lecturer, Department of 
Medical Microbiology,  University of Sheffield, UK, 1976-1978, Guest Researcher, Centers for Disease Control 
(CDC), Sexually Transmitted Diseases, Research Laboratory, Center for Infectious Diseases, Atlanta, Georgia, 
USA, 1981-1982.  He is also a former Honorary Consultant Microbiologist, Lagos University Teaching Hospital 
and the University of Ilorin Teaching Hospital. 

Professor Tolu Odugbemi, is a researcher who has made many land mark contributions to medical profession and 
humanity through his outstanding research findings. He has to his credit over 200 publications in National and 
International Journals and Articles of excellent research in Microbiology and other areas. He has also played a key 
role in dissemination of medical research findings by founding the Nigeria Journal of Health and Biomedical 
Sciences. He had previously served as Editor-in-Chief of the Nigerian Quarterly Journal of Hospital Medicine and 
as Editorial consultant to other medical journals and member of several professional bodies.

A seasoned administrator, he served as Provost, College of Medicine of the University of Lagos (CMUL) 1997- 
2000, President National Postgraduate Medical College of Nigeria (2002-2003). He is a former Vice-Chancellor 
of the University of Lagos (2007-2010) and also the Ondo State University of Science and Technology 
(OSUSTECH) Okitipupa, Nigeria (2010-2015). Prof Odugbemi has previously served on the governing councils of 
the University of Lagos, Ondo State University of Science and Technology, West African College of Physicians, 
Nigerian Academy of Science and the Medical and Dental Council of Nigeria. As President of the National 
Postgraduate Medical College of Nigeria he was also the Chairman of the Governing Board of that institution.

Prof. Odugbemi has received many accolades nationally and internationally for his distinguished scholarship and 
outstanding contributions to the field of medicine and uplift of Education. He was honoured with the Nigerian 

thNational Order of Merit (NNOM) and the Officer of the Order of Niger (OON) awards on 6  December, 2007 and 
th14  February, 2008 respectively by the President of the Federal Republic of Nigeria. He is a Fellow of the Nigeria 

Academy of Science, a Distinguished Fellow of the National Postgraduate Medical College of Nigeria (DFMC) and a 
recipient of an honorary Doctor of Science (Hon. D.Sc) degree from his alma mater, The University of Sheffield, 
United Kingdom. He also holds the traditional chieftaincy titles of Alatunse of Okeigbo, Gbekoniyi of Ondo 
Kingdom and Fiwajoye of Oke-Ayedun Ekiti .

Professor Tolu Odugbemi
OON, NNOM , Hon. D.Sc, Ph.D (Sheffield), 

MD (Lagos), DFMC, PNMC, FAS, FRCPath (UK), 
FMCPath (Nig.) FWACP (Lab. Med.)

MEMBER, 
GOVERNING COUNCIL OF UNIMED
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Professor Fola Esan

MEMBER, 
GOVERNING COUNCIL OF UNIMED

rofessor Fola Esan graduated with an MB BS with honours from the University College, Ibadan (University 
of London) in 1962 gaining distinctions in Pathology and Obstetrics and Gynaecology. After postgraduate Ptraining in Ibadan, Nigeria, London, UK, and in the USA (New York and San Francisco), he was appointed 

Professor of Haematology in Ibadan in 1975, a position from which he voluntarily retired in 1988. He served as 
the Director (re-designated Director-General) at the National Institute for Medical Research, Yaba, Lagos, 1986-
88. He then worked in academic institutions in the Middle East (Saudi Arabia and UAE) and returned home to set 
up (with Professor G. B. Ogunmola, a retired professor of chemistry) the Institute of Genetic Chemistry and 
Laboratory Medicine in Ibadan. 

Professor Esan was appointed Provost, College of Medicine, Ekiti State University between April 2009 and July 
2013 with a remit to resuscitate the suspended College where he was employed as a Professor. His area of 
specialization in Haematology is the haemoglobinopathies and thalassaemia for which he received grants and 
awards including the Langley Memorial Prize of the London School for Tropical Medicine and Hygiene in 1974. He 
was the Foundation Secretary of the Nigerian Society for Haematology and Blood Transfusion and later served two 
terms as President. He was elected Fellow of the Nigerian Academy of Science in 1982 and have served in various 
capacities including Editor of The Proceedings, member of Council, Lead Person for the Forum on Evidence-based 
Health Policy Making, Chairman, Health Sciences Committee and IAMP Contact Person and member of the IAMP 
Executive Committee.

He was very instrumental in shaping the faculty of pathology of the National postgraduate Medical College of 
Nigeria. He held several important positions in the Nigeria Medical Association and has significant research 
contributions on the Clinical, biochemical and molecular studies on abnormal hemoglobin's especially sickle cell 
anemia. 

He is currently a Director at Institute of Genetic Chemistry and Laboratory Medicine.
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High Chief Johnson Olusola Adeduro

igh Chief Johnson Olusola Adeduro was born in Ondo to Late High Chief Samuel Adeduro, the Adaja of 
Ondo and Madam Comfort Olakunbi Adeduro (nee Famutimi, the Late Aruwa of Ondo) on December 2, H1942.

He started his primary education at St. Matthew's School, Owena and finished at St. John's Primary School, Ondo 
in 1958, thereafter he attended Jubilee Modern School the following year and graduated in 1961. In 1962 he 
proceeded to Ondo Boys' High School (O.B.H.S.) and passed out in 1965. He proceeded to United States of 
America in 1969 and enrolled at Howard University, Washington D. C. and graduated with flying colours with a 
Bachelor of Science, Chemistry   in 1973.

He finally came back to the country in 1976 and took up an appointment with the defunct Food and Drug 
Administration Department of the Federal Ministry of Health (now NAFDAC. After exactly 10years of meritorious 
service, he withdrew his service from the Federal Ministry of Health.

High Chief Adeduro formed a corporate organization called JOLUS LIMITED. The company had been growing from 
strength to strength. He is also the Chairman (CEO) of Sofuros Nig. Ltd. (A Real Estate Company) and a Director of 
defunct Trust Bank of Africa where he served as Chairman of several committees of the Board. He is also the 
Chairman of Transatlantic Property Management Company Limited.

He is a member of some social organisations among which is Club 11 of Nigeria (Former President) which he 
founded with close friends, Chairman of Landlord Association of Rumudaolu Market Road, Port Harcourt. He is a 
Patron of some Social Organisations among which are Ondo Youth Association (OYA) and The Great Mercury Club 
of Africa. He is devout Christian and a member of Brotherly love Circle of St Stephen's Cathedral Church, Ondo.

For his outstanding performance in all facets of life, High Chief Adeduro has received several awards. Some of the 
awards are; a merit award by The Diocese of Anglican Communion at the year 2005 Synod; a merit award as Chief 
Launcher of Ekimogun Day 2005; a merit award from Ondo Development Committee on Ekimogun Day 2007. 
Others include a merit Award on 90 years founder's Day Celebration of Ondo Boys' High School, Ondo; a 
Distinguished Award at the 2011 Edition of High Chief Olabanji Akingbule Public Lecture and Awards; Award of 
Excellence from Rotary International.

High Chief Adeduro is a philanthropist. As a reward for his excellent performance and his commitment to the 
development of his hometown, he was installed the Sara of Ondo Kingdom by His Royal Majesty, Oba Dr. Victor 
Kiladejo CFR,  Jilo 111, the Osemawe and Paramount Ruler of Ondo Kingdom in 2008.

High Chief Adeduro is happily married to his childhood friend, confidant and jewel, Margaret Oluwafunke Adeduro 
(nee Adeyemi), a retired Deputy Director, Rivers State Ministry of Health. The marriage is blessed with children.
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r Kofoworola, Olutoyin Odusote was born in July 1948 to the family of Late Lotu Omoba of Ondo, Prince 
Adedayo Roberts. After her secondary education at St Annes School, Ibadan, she proceeded to study Dmedicine at the University of Ibadan in 1967 from where she graduated in 1973.  She had postgraduate 

specialist training in Family Medicine at the Lagos University Teaching Hospital and obtained the Fellowship of the 
West African College of Physicians (FWACP) in 1991. She also had clinical exposure at the Royal Victoria Hospital 
and Montreal Children Hospital, Montreal, Canada.

She worked for many years as Chief Medical Officer and Consultant Family Physician at the Lagos University 
Teaching Hospital. During this period she was also a part-time lecturer and examiner at the Institute of Child 
Health and Primary Care of the College of Medicine, University of Lagos. In 1999, she was appointed the Director 
of Health Services, University of Lagos and transferred her services from the Teaching Hospital to the University. 
She worked in this capacity until her retirement in 2008.

As Director of Health Services, Dr Odusote brought in a number of innovations to enhance the services offered at 
the University Medical Centre and ensure that the community receives the best medical care in an appropriate 
setting and at a cost the University can afford. During this period, she represented the Vice Chancellor on the Board 
of the Lagos University Teaching Hospital, Idi-Araba, Lagos.  

Dr. Kofoworola Odusote is a member of many professional associations and is the immediate past Honorary 
Treasurer of the West African College of Physicians.   She is also an examiner at the Fellowship examinations in the 
Faculty of Family Medicine of the College. Currently, she is the Chief Executive Officer of the Winiseph Care Home 
for the elderly in Ikeja, Lagos State, which she established after her retirement from University services.  Also, she 
is part-time Consultant and postgraduate trainer in Family Medicine at both the Lagos University Teaching 
Hospital and the University of Lagos Medical Centre.
She is a member of the Chapel of The Healing Cross, Idi-Araba and immediate past Leader of The Fellowship of 
Peace and was a member of Council of the Chapel. 

She is happily married to Professor Kayode Odusote and blessed with children and grandchildren.

Dr. (Mrs.) Kofoworola Olutoyin Odusote
(nee Roberts)
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r. Olabisi Jagun, MD; FACP  graduated from the University of IFE with a medical degree and interning at the 
University College Hospital, she later attended the University of London's School of Hygiene and Tropical DMedicine.  She continued her medical training at Howard University Hospital where she completed her 

internship and residency in Internal Medicine and becoming Chief Medical resident in Internal Medicine.

She completed a fellowship in Nephrology and Hypertension at the same institution.  She is double board certified 
in Internal Medicine and Nephrology. In 1999, she was conferred a Fellowship of the American College of 
Physicians

Olabisi Jagun, MD; FACP is currently President and CEO of the Foundation for Combined African Medical Missions 
(FCAMM). She is also Attending Physician, Department of Emergency Medicine at Centra Southside Community 
Hospital, Farmville, VA and Davis Memorial Hospital, Elkins, WV. Previously, she was Chief of the Division of 
Nephrology and Hypertension, Howard University Hospital, Washington, D.C. and Medical Director, Department 
of Emergency Medicine, Greater Southeast Community Hospital, Washington, D.C.

Dr. Jagun has demonstrated strengths in leading diverse medical teams and is very active in the Medical Societies 
of both the District of Columbia and the state of Maryland. She volunteers on the Emergency Preparedness 
Committees of both the District of Columbia and the state of Maryland. Dr. Jagun has chaired several hospital and 
local committees; recipient of numerous outstanding physician awards in recognition of her immense contribution 
to the improvement of community health both in the USA and abroad. Her tremendous body of work, knowledge of 
the history of medicine, and reputation for working tirelessly to ensure the highest standards of medicine in the 
best traditions of the profession, is well above board. 

Dr. Olabisi Jagun
MD; FACP
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Dr. (Mrs.) Chinelo Nwosu

r. Chinelo Nwosu is a Biochemist and contributing to national development at the National Universities 
Commission (NUC) where she was nominated to represent the Commission on the Council of University of DMedical Sciences Ondo, Ondo State. 

Her academic career started in 1999 when she was called upon by the University of Port Harcourt to join and 
strengthen her former department as a lecturer. She later relocated to Abuja and joined the National Universities 
Commission in 2009 and within, five years of her joining the NUC, was acknowledged the best staff in the 
Research and Innovation Department because of her diligence to work and passion to raise standards in the 
Nigerian University System (NUS). It is her desire to see the NUS raising universities that are world class and 
producing globally competitive graduates.

She carried out her terminal degree research between 2003 and 2004 as a Fulbright Scholar at the Cancer 
Research Institute of University of Nevada, Las Vegas USA working on anticarcinogenic agents in natural food 
products. Prior to her sojourn to the US, she had acquired two Master of Science degrees, one from the University 
of Port Harcourt in Biochemistry (Nutrition and Toxicology) and University of Surrey Guildford, United Kingdom in 
Clinical Biochemistry and Molecular Biology.

She was the University of Port Harcourt's 10th Valedictorian during the convocation ceremony, having topped her 
class that year as the best graduating student from the Faculty of Science, and Department of Biochemistry 
respectively in 1990. She also graduated with distinctions and credits at her WAEC exam as well as earning 
several awards during her secondary school graduation and played various leadership roles.

Aside from her professional and academic achievements, Mrs. Nwosu and her spouse, Br. L E. Nwosu (SAN) have 
five beautiful children from their union of 29 years. As Christians, they believe in serving God through acts of 
charity particularly in the empowerment of women and youths as well as providing scholarships to deserving 
children. Thus, she has acquired so many other non-biological children through their service to God and humanity.
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rchitect Richard Olajide Adejuyigbe was born in Akure, Ondo State and started his Educational pursuit at St. 
Thomas's Anglican Primary School, Akure in 1964.  He had his Secondary School Education at Anglican AGrammar School, Iju-Itaogbolu and Olivet Baptist High School, Oyo. He proceeded to Federal Government 

College, Ilorin for his Advanced Level Certificate in Education. He was at the University of Nigeria, Nsukka 
between 1978 and 1983, where he graduated with a Bachelor of Architecture Degree. He became a registered 
Architect in 1986.

Architect Adejuyigbe has worked at several levels in different firms at different times, among which are, Marker 
Design Associates, Akure; Allied Architects, Ibadan; Archi-Hives, Lagos; Ajayi Samuel & Associates, Lagos; 
Ministry of Defense, Lagos. Well focused and determined, Arc. Olajide Adejuyigbe in 1992, left to establish his 
own practice in Lagos named Versatile Consultants.

Architect Adejuyigbe's knack for professionalism is evident in his handling of a lot of projects, some of which are, 
The temporary site, Federal University of Technology, Akure Master Plan; Extension of the Library of Federal 
University of Technology, Akure to accommodate 2500 readers; Institute of Hotel Tourism Training, Lagos, Lagos 
State; Federal Medical Centre, Abeokuta, Ogun State; Oba Market, Benin City, Edo State.

Other projects handled by Architect Adejuyigbe include, Federal Ministry Secretariat, Abuja; Naval Training 
Institute, Ile-Ife, Osun State; Bachelor Officers' Quarters, Nigerian Navy; Residential Quarters, Naval School, NNS 
Quorra, Lagos; Corporal and Below Quarters, 43 Engineer Brigade, Jos, Plateau State;  Ondo State Public Service 
Training Institute, Ilara-Mokin, Ondo State.

He is a member of the many professional bodies which include, Architects Registration Council of Nigeria; Nigeria 
Institute of Architects; Real Estate Development Association of Nigeria.

Architect Olajide Adejuyigbe veered into politics because of his belief that the worth of a man's life can only be truly 
measured by the contributions he has made in uplifting the lives of his  people in particular and solving societal 
problems in general. So far, he has managed various political offices among which was the Caretaker Chairman, 
Akure South Local Government and at present the Commissioner for Education in Ondo State.  

Arc. Olajide Adejuyigbe is happily married to Barrister Adeoti Adejuyigbe. The marriage is blessed with wonderful 
children.

Architect Richard Olajide Adejuyigbe 
(B.ARCH., MNIA)
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Hon. Dr. Adedayo Kazeem Adeyanju

r. Adedayo Kazeem Adeyanju was born to the family of late business mogul, Alhaji Adeyanju and consummate 
woman, Alhaja Adeyanju over four decades ago in the ancient Ondo kingdom. Young Adedayo began his academic Dpursuits at Adeyemi Primary School, Ondo, passed out in flying colours before attending the prestigious Saint 

Joseph's College, also in Ondo.

He studied medicine at the premier University of Ibadan and thereafter, qualified as doctor with specialization in public 
Health. He later obtained a Master's Degree in Public Health from the Obafemi Awolowo University, (OAU) Ile-Ife. Dr. 
Adeyanju started his career as a house officer at the State Specialist Hospital, Akure and proceeded for his mandatory 
National Youth Service Corps Scheme at Abakaliki, Ebonyi State after which he returned to Ondo State and joined the 
service of the Ondo State Government.
His thirst for excellence saw him being appointed at different times as the State Coordinator for HIV/AIDS, Malaria, Special 
Assistant to the Ondo State Governor on Health, General Manager, World Bank assisted Community and Social 
Development Agency and now the Honourable State Commissioner for Health.

As State Coordinator for HIV/AIDS, he embarked on aggressive, purpose-driven and result-oriented activities which led to a 
remarkable decline in the prevalence of HIV/AIDS from 6.7% in 2001 to 2.3% in 2003. As State Coordinator, Malaria 
Control Programme, he initiated series of programmes, awareness, and sensitization which not only brought results from 
the government, but equally earned him recognition to represent the country in Banghok, Thailand. As Special Assistant to 
the Ondo State Governor on Health, Dr. Adeyanju was privileged to conceptualize and designed the homegrown Abiye Safe 
Motherhoold Programme as well as coordinated its implementation. He has seen to the successful scale up of Abiye Safe 
Motherhood Programme in the remaining 17 local government areas of the state.
 Abiye Safe Motherhood Programme was adopted by the World Bank as a benchmark for the African continent in tackling 
infant and maternal mortality as well as achieving the millennium Development Goals four and five. As the pioneer General 
Manager of the Ondo State Community and Social Development Agency (ODCSDA), Dr. Dayo Adeyanju  conceptualized a 
structure for the Agency that ensured poor communities have access to services of human development index.

Also, Dr. Adeyanju has worked hard to ensure the successful take-off of the state Medical Village and that of the University of 
Medical Sciences, Ondo.
Interestingly, his tenure as Commissioner for Health has witnessed many profound initiatives in line with the CARING 
HEART programme of Governor Mimiko to provide exceptional and qualitative service for the teeming people of the state, 
where they live, work and play.
Dr. Adeyanju is widely travelled and has attended trainings, conferences both at home and abroad which included ASCON 
in Badagry, Lagos Business School, Harvard School of Public Health, Harvard University, Boston, USA with a certificate in 
improving quality Health services among others.

Dr. Adeyanju has won several awards and recognitions from institutions and bodies in Nigeria. These include: NYSC State 
Award, Rotary Entrepreneur of the Year, Ansarudeen Youth Muslim Torchbearer, Excellence in Community Health by Rotary 
Club, Akure and the OSRC NUJ Gold Medal Award, Zik International Award by Business Reports International, Abuja, Dr. 
Kwame Nkrumah Distinguished African Public Service Order of Merit Award, Leadership Excellence Award by Trace News 
Magazine, African International Role Model Leadership Gold Award by African Times Communications, NUJ 2014 
Commissioner of the year. Others are from the School of Sciences of the Federal University of Technology Akure, 
Pharmaceutical Society of Nigeria, Ondo State Branch and the National Association of Ondo State Students (NAOSS) to 
mention a few for excellence service delivery. 
Dr. Adeyanju belongs to many associations. They are the Nigerian Medical Association (NMA), America Public Health 
Association, Global Council on Health, Aristocrat-Club 90 NASFAT, among others. 

He is happily married with children.
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n December 8, 2014, the Executive Governor of Ondo State, His Excellency, Dr. Olusegun Mimiko, signed 
the Ondo State University of Medical Sciences Law 2014. In March 2015, Mr Governor approved the 
appointment of the first Vice-Chancellor, Professor Friday Okonofua, FAS and the first Registrar, Dr. (Mrs) O

Eunice Funke Oyebade, mni.  The existing “Medical Village”, comprising the Mother and Child Hospital, Trauma 
Centre, the Kidney Care Centre and the Gani Fawehinmi Diagnostic Centre, was to be integrated into the University 
and formed its take-off administrative and resource base.  The surrounding 100 hectares of land was acquired by 
the government to allow future expansion of the University.
At the time of the appointment of the Vice-Chancellor and the Registrar, not much physical, infrastructural, 
academic and administrative planning had taken place and the National Universities Commission (NUC) had 
therefore not been approached for formal recognition of the University.  With the instrument establishing the 
University by the Ondo State Government, the new University therefore approached the NUC for official 
recognition, which was given on April 22, 2015.  
In presenting the letter of recognition to the Executive Governor, Dr Olusegun Mimiko, the Executive Secretary of 
the NUC said inter alia: “I wish to congratulate the Government and people of Ondo State for this establishment of 

ndthe Ondo State University of Medical Sciences.  With effect from 22  April, 2015, the Ondo State University of 
thMedical Sciences has been recognised by the National Universities Commission as the 40  State University and 

ththe 139  University in Nigeria. It is however advised that the University should invite the NUC to assess the 
resources and facilities before the enrolment of students into the medical programmes”.
Despite the recognition given by the NUC, the University could not begin official administrative work until July 
2015, due to resource and funding constraints. It was only then that some staff were appointed and the framework 
for administrative duties was established.

The Governing Council of the university under the able chairmanship of Emeritus Professor Oladipupo Akinkugbe, 
FAS, CFR was inaugurated by Governor Olusegun Mimiko on November 16, 2015 thus signalling the readiness of 
the university to commence academic activities.

On December 7, 2015, an advisory team of the National Universities Commission visited the university, 
apparently to appraise its readiness to commence academic activities. The NUC visit was followed shortly after on 
December 9 by the team of the Medical and Dental Council of Nigeria. The two regulatory bodies were satisfied by 
their findings even as they dropped hints of areas in which they expected further efforts. The MDCN later wrote to 
the UNIMED VC that it was impressed by what the university had on ground. In the letter, the MDCN Registrar, Dr. 
A.A. Ibrahim, said, “Following the advisory visitation to your university on Wednesday, December 9, 2015 by a 
team from the MDCN that inspected your facilities, personnel and curriculum of study, I write to convey Council's 
satisfaction with the ongoing efforts at properly establishing your medical school.”

Barely one month after the NUC and MDCN visits, the University on January 5, 2016 released its first admission 
list while its pioneer students started arriving at their hall of residence on January 10, 2016. There is no stopping 
UNIMED from then on as various activities, including registration of students, orientation and commencement of 

BRIEF HISTORY OF THE UNIVERSITY

Gani Fawehinmi Diagnostic Centre Emergency Information Centre
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classes were accomplished in record time. A total of 192 pioneers students, spread across five programmes-
Medicine, Dentistry, Anatomy, Physiology and Biochemistry-were matriculated on March 5, 2016. The University 
was also formally inaugurated by Governor Olusegun Mimiko on the same day.  

Within its short life, the University of Medical Sciences, Ondo, has established itself as a stakeholder to reckon 
with in the health and education sectors. On June 15, 2016 the university held its First Distinguished Lecture, 
drawing to the campus top academics, distinguished medical practitioners and other stakeholders to listen to the 
Guest Lecturer, Emeritus Professor Kelsey Harrison, a former VC of the University of Port Harcourt. 
 
On July 7, 2016, the university similarly attracted top government functionaries, academics, royal fathers, 
captains of industries and other citizens to the epoch-making launching of the Friends of UNIMED Fund (FUF). The 
scheme, FUF, is a novel effort by the university's managers to create a pool of friends who will contribute to the 
funding of the university. In its bare form, the FUF aims at raising one million friends who are expected to 
contribute at least One Thousand Naira annually to fund the university. The scheme has continued to excite 
Nigerians as well as attract donors who are eager to contribute far more than the minimum.   And more than cash, 
UNIMED friends have contributed other items, including office equipments and other facilities. The biggest donor 
to the scheme so far is Chief Isaac Akintade, the Saibi Gogou of Ondo Kingdom, who has commenced construction 
of the multi-million naira Faculty of Basic Clinical Sciences building he pledged under the FUF.

Dr. (MRS) E. F. Oyebade, mni
Registrar

Trauma Centre Mother and Child Hospital

Kidney Care Centre Doctors' Residences
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STATE OF THE UNIVERSITY OF MEDICAL SCIENCES (UNIMED): 

Notes From The Vice-Chancellor

Introduction

t is with great respect and veneration that I address 
you after our first year of operation.  I wish to, in a Ivery special way, thank all those who made this 

University possible.  In particular, I wish to thank the 
progressive, forward-looking and very dynamic 
Governor of the State, His Excellency Dr. Olusegun 
Mimiko for his visionary and bold efforts in establishing 
this first University devoted to the Medical Sciences in 
the whole of West Africa.  Indeed, history will be kind 
to you, Sir, not only for this noble effort, but for the 
exemplary leadership you have provided in Ondo 
State, especially in health and educational 
transformation, which I am aware other States are still 
battling to study and to copy and emulate.

I also wish to thank those who worked with Mr. 
Governor in efforts to fulfill the aims and objectives of 
this unique University. I know there are many, but let 
me particularly mention the noble roles played by the 
Hon Commissioner for Health, Dr. Dayo Adeyanju, the 
Chairman of the Governing Council, Emeritus 
Professor O. O. Akinkugbe and the Osemawe of Ondo 
Kingdom, His Royal Majesty, Dr. Oba Victor Kiladejo. 
They have been my key advisers and supporters since I 
took office as Vice-Chancellor. I would also like to 
mention the Commissioner for Finance and the 

Commissioner for Education, and indeed, all members 
of the University's Governing Council who have always 
stood like Rocks of Gibraltar behind every effort made 
by the University. I also wish to most sincerely thank 
our neighboring institutions, especially the Adeyemi 
College of Education and National University of 
Educational Planning and Administration (NIEPA) for 
the support they continue to provide to the University. 
Indeed, the Provost of the Adeyemi College of 
Education, Professor Ogen has stood like a veritable 
adviser, I will forever be grateful to him for being the 
unspoken Trojan Horse behind the University since its 
inception. Indeed, the University is keeping 
foundational records of these contributions.  When the 
history of this University is finally written, the names of 
all contributors at this stage of its infancy will be 
written in gold.  

University's Mission and Vision Statements

As this represents the first birthday of the University, it 
is appropriate that we re-state the mission and vision of 
the University. 

The mission of UNIMED is: “To provide exceptional 
quality and comprehensive health care and integrated 
education and research in all health-related sciences, 
to expand access to compassionate and high quality 
health care for under-served populations, and to lead 
the scientific pathway for reducing the burden of 
disease in our areas of operation”. 

The vision of the University is “to be a thriving medical 
and health sciences University, locally, nationally and 
internationally recognized for excellence and 
innovation in health education and research, and for its 
ability to translate research findings for the 
improvement of health in communities with high 
burden of disease”. 

Our principal objective is to establish a 21st Century 
World-Class University of excellence in medical 
research, teaching and service delivery.  I wish to let 
you know that the aforementioned mission and vision 
statements were developed after intense deliberations, 
and I to assure you, we are deeply committed to its 
actualization. This University will work assiduously 
and relentlessly to correct the mistakes that currently 
bedevil medical education and service delivery in this 
country.  As Vice-Chancellor, I wish to assure you that I 

The First Year Report of 
The University of Medical Sciences, 
Ondo City, Ondo State, Nigeria  

29



will work with utmost patriotism and with deep 
commitment, transparency and accountability to 
achieve the best international benchmarks for the 
University within the shortest period of time.

UNIMED: Reflection on the First Year

As most of you probably know, the University was 
given formal recognition and Certificate of Recognition 
as the 140th Nigerian University by the National 
Universities Commission (NUC) in April 2015.  
However, the University did not go into full swing until 
July 2015.  Since then we have made significant 
progress in all spheres.  As at November 2016, the 
University has appointed a total number of 145 staff 
(Academic Staff 48, Senior Administrative and 
Technical Staff 62 and 37 Junior Staff including 
principal officers), we have also firmly organized and 
put all administrative and academic structures of the 
University in place.

The Council of the University was inaugurated by Mr 
Governor, His Excellency, Dr. Olusegun Mimiko, CON 
in December 2015 under the Distinguished 
Chairmanship of Emeritus Professor O. O. Akinkugbe 
FAS, NNOM.  Since then, Council has had monthly 
meetings to deliberate on ways to move the University 
forward.  Senate has also been fully constituted and is 
meeting regularly to plan and drive the academic 
programs of the University.  Indeed, all Committees of 
Senate and Council have been fully established and are 
working well in accordance with the edict that 
established the University.  The University is also 
building its administrative and academic 
infrastructures at a fast pace never before witnessed for 
newly established Universities in this country.

One of the major achievements of the University was 
the approval given to it by the NUC to begin five 
Academic courses; Medicine, Dentistry, Biochemistry, 
Physiology, and Anatomy following the visit of a 
Resource Verification Team from the Commission to 
the University in December 2015.  The Medical and 
Dental Council of Nigeria (MDCN) also paid an 
advisory visit to the University in December 2015, and 
was impressed with the plans being put in place to 
establish the Medical and Dental programs of the 
university. The University has since been pursuing the 
implementation of the specific recommendations 
made by the NUC and MDCN teams to strongly 
establish its Medical and Dental programs.

Matriculation

Distinguished Guests, Ladies and Gentlemen, I am 
pleased to inform you that the University was able to 

admit its first set of students in January 2016.  This 
consisted of 234 students admitted into various 
courses in the University. This includes 97 admitted 
into Medicine (54 at 100 Level and 43 at 200 Level); 
36 into Dentistry (21 at 100 Level and 15 at 200 
Level); 32 at 100 Level Biochemistry; 34 at 100 Level 
Anatomy; and 35 at 100 Level Physiology.  
Students came into residence on January 10, 2016.  
They completed their orientation program on January 
23, 2016 and began lectures on January 25, 2016.  
Most of the students completed their registration 
formalities, which formed the basis of the University's 
successfully conducted first ever Matriculation 
ceremony in March 2016. The school fees charged by 
the University is one of the lowest in the Country.

Matriculation signals the formal admission of the 
students into the University, without which students 
would still be regarded as ad-hoc rather than full-time 
students. Therefore, the first matriculation ceremony 
of the University was an important and crucial event 
which was celebrated proudly by students, parents 
and all friends of the University. The students took the 
Matriculation Oath during the ceremony to indicate 
their willingness to abide by the rules and regulations 
of the University. 

Inauguration of the University

As the Matriculation was the first major event of the 
University, during the ceremony, the University was 
formally inaugurated. Thus, this matriculation 
combined with inauguration ceremony provided the 
opportunity to present the University to the general 
public, for stakeholders to see the University at its 
foundational level and to offer relevant suggestions and 
support. From then on, the University has organized 
major events, including the Distinguished Guest 
Lecture that brought the ethos of the University to the 
recognition of the wider segment of the society.  During 
the University inauguration, we were grateful that the 
Executive Secretary of the NUC himself, Professor 
Julius Okojie was able to join us to talk to us about the 
expectations of the NUC and indeed all Nigerians of 
this University.  His words of advice were taken to 
heart and the results of that are evident in the desire to 
propel the University to the world stage.  Two eminent 
professors who had been helping the University in its 
strategic planning were also in attendance. Professor 
Peter Okebukola, a Vice-Chancellor emeritus and 
former Executive Secretary of the NUC, is the special 
adviser plenipotentiary to me as Vice-Chancellor and 
also assisted the University with the development of its 
strategic plan.  We were also very grateful to Professor 
O. A. Bamiro, former Vice-Chancellor of the University 
of Ibadan, a man for whom I have the highest respect 
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contributions towards the development of the 
University; and 2) to manage the Funds in a 
transparent, effective and accountable manner for 
specific identifiable projects on research, service 
delivery and development of the University.

The idea is to generate a cohort of friends for the 
University who will make regular, small and 
determined financial contributions towards the 
implementation of specific projects in the University.  It 
is not the size of individual contributions that will 
matter, but rather the number and consistency of the 
donors.  The goal of the University is to attract one 
million faithful friends who will make annual donations 
of at least one thousand naira (N1000) each. This will 
amount to about One Billion Naira each year, enough 
to embark on major developmental projects each year 
for the University. This Fund was launched in July and 
subsequent fund raising ideas are in the works. 

Appreciation of Donors

Let me at this point thank all those who attended both 
the Ondo and Abuja launches of the FUF, those who 
visited the University, those who welcomed us into 
your homes on our several courtesy visits and those 
who have made various donations including Capital 
Projects, cash, furniture, electronics, etc. to the 
University over the past months. We are very grateful 
to all donors.  In addition to external donors, I would 
like to acknowledge the staff of the University who 
have donated to the Friends of UNIMED Fund. Your 
constant sacrifice and financial support to the 
advancement of the University did not go unnoticed. 

Conclusions

On behalf of the Governing Council, Faculty, Staff and 
Students, I wish to thank you profusely for your interest 
in the University and for reading this address. We wish 
to assure you of the deep commitment of all Principal 
Officers of the University (indeed, my personal 
commitment) to propel this noble idea of the great 
people of Ondo State to its highest level of potentiation. 
To this commitment, we are prayerful that the Almighty 
Lord will continue to give us wisdom and good health 
to ensure its full realization to the entire benefit of all 
Nigerians.

Thank you.

Prof. Friday Okonofua, FAS
Vice Chancellor

for his integrity, who is our adviser on research 
development. We thank him for his unwavering and 
towering support he has continued to give to the 
University.  The two distinguished professors; 
Professor Okebukola and Professor Bamiro on their 
own are current and serving Chairmen and Pro-
Chancellors of two Nigerian Universities, and are 
continually being sought out for educational matters in 
this country. We are indeed, very grateful for their 
influence on the University.

University Sustainability Plans

Permit me at this juncture to speak on a subject matter 
that has been agitating the minds of friends and 
various stakeholders about the University, for which I 
have received a number of questions.  This is the 
sustainability of the University in view of the dwindling 
national and state resources.  Let me first reiterate the 
answer I have often given to everyone who has 
expressed this concern. A good idea is a good idea, it is 
not the lack of money that is the problem with our 
country, but the lack of great ideas.  When you have 
great ideas, money will come to drive the 
implementation of the idea, and of course all 
progressive people will support the idea.  The idea of 
the University of Medical Sciences is one of the most 
creative and innovative ideas that have taken place in 
the development of tertiary education, especially the 
development of medical education in this country. To 
that end, I am convinced without any doubt that the 
University of Medical Sciences has come to stay and 
will be supported by all Nigerians in perpetuity.

To meet the anticipated challenges in financing, which 
indeed, ALL Nigerian Universities are facing at the 
present time, the University of Medical Sciences has 
established a multi-functional and professional fund-
raising office headed by Professor Denis Abimbola 
Akintade, the Director of Advancement and 
Documentation. To date, the multi-faceted fund-
raising efforts of the University have made tremendous 
progress, and we are hopeful that this will continue to 
be a significant aspect of the University's sustainability 
plan.

Friends of UNIMED Fund

At its Meeting on February 18, 2016, the Governing 
Council of the University decided to establish a 
“Friends of UNIMED Fund (FUF)” for the purpose of 
obtaining the resources to grow the University to attain 
its mission and vision statements.  The objectives of 
the UNIMED FUF are twofold: 1) to build a multitude 
of friends for the University who will see themselves as 
stakeholders, and therefore be willing to make regular 
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The specific objectives for establishing UNIMED are as follows:
?To prepare students for leading professional roles in all disciplines in the health sector in Nigeria and 

globally;
?To offer the best tertiary health care (including preventive and curative care) for all forms of diseases, 

disabilities and deformities that are prevalent in Nigeria specifically, and throughout the African region 
broadly;

?To promote research and creative work for transforming and improving the health of Nigerians and the 
world at large;

?To develop human and physical resources of the University to some of the best attainable standards in the 
world; and

?To promote the health and social well-being of Nigerians through engagement, outreach services and 
public education.

VICE-CHANCELLOR'S SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES

GOAL: The goal of the foundation Vice-Chancellor of UNIMED is to position the University to support Nigeria's 
quest for high quality education, service delivery, research and innovation in the health sciences.

SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES:  This goal would be attained through the following strategic objectives:

1) Build a transparent, effective and accountable governance that will establish the University on sound 
administrative and academic principles similar to those found in the best University traditions anywhere 
in the world;

2) Develop a multi-stakeholder funding base, and engender the sensible and accountable appropriation and 
use of the funds for the sustainable development of the University, especially to promote infrastructural 
and staff development and boost teaching, clinical services and research activities;

3) Provide for the systematic infrastructural development of the University using the highest standards and 
models of architecture and physical planning for campus development;

4) Promote the academic growth of the University by ensuring full accreditation of all its academic courses 
within the shortest possible period of time, and increasing academic and research outputs, with 
increased ranking of the University, overall; and

5) Support community out-reach services such that the University will immediately begin to address the 
socio-economic development and health problems of its immediate communities and be the lead 
institutional advisor on the developmental aspirations of the local community.

Vice Chancellor's Office (Temporary)

ADDRESSING THE OBJECTIVES OF THE UNIVERSITY
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STRATEGIES FOR ACHIEVING THE OBJECTIVES

The following strategies for achieving the specific objectives were identified in the foundational years of the 
institution:

?Development of the UNIMED Strategic Plan
?Effective and accountable governance
?Fund-raising for sustainable funding
?Transparent budget, financial and audit procedures 
?Infrastructural development
?Cutting-edge academic development
?Contributions to community development

DEVELOPMENT OF THE UNIMED STRATEGIC PLAN

The goal of UNIMED is to become a world-class university while delivering excellence and innovation in health 
education and research for the improvement of health in communities with high burden of diseases and to curb 
medical tourism. As part of efforts to achieve excellence and drive the vision and mission of the University, the 
development of a strategic plan was accorded top priority by the Management.  To that extent, machineries were 
set in motion to develop a comprehensive plan with the appointment of a Consultant in the person of Prof. Peter 
Okebukola to facilitate the process leading to the preparation of the strategic plan document. Three workshops 
(funded by the Ford Foundation) were held between ....... 2016 with all University administrators, faculty and 
staff in attendance to draw up the 5-year University strategic plan spanning the period between 2016 and 2020. 
This approach was employed to provide an opportunity for maximum input by all, provide a framework and a 
clearly defined direction for the University, increase the level of commitment to the organization and its goals, and 
buy-in by all to increase compliance.

EFFECTIVE AND ACCOUNTABLE GOVERNANCE
From inception, the University has put in place core principles of corporate governance that include best practices, 
accountability, transparency, efficiency and effective service delivery, effective use of committee system, 
institutional checks and balances, principle of trust and consensus, staff motivation and welfare as well as the 
concept of community services to the society.

ADMINISTRATIVE SETUP
With the appointment of the Vice-Chancellor and the Registrar and inauguration of the Governing Council on 

thMonday, 16  November 2015 by His Excellency and Visitor to the University, Dr. Olusegun Mimiko, CON, other 
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organs of the University like the Senate, Congregation as well as other statutory committees were put in place for 
effective administration and governance of the new University.

RETREATS, ADMINISTRATIVE TRAININGS AND WORKSHOPS 
As part of efforts to foster excellence in teaching, research and service delivery in all health sciences disciplines, 
the University decided on the option of doing things differently in ways to correct the present inadequacies that 
bedevil the tertiary educational system in Nigeria. One of the strategies that the University has identified for 
achieving its developmental milestones is unrelenting staff training, re-orientation and staff motivation.

In achieving the above, the University convened a unique staff orientation workshop for its pioneer Academic and 
st th Non-teaching staff between Monday 1  and Friday 5 February, 2016 in order to build common understanding of 

the specific methods to be adopted for growing the University to world class status.  The workshop brought 
together some of the best minds in University education.  

The one-week training was funded by the Ford Foundation and facilitated by eminent and distinguished 
academics. The facilitators included:

?Professor A. G. Onokerhorhaye, former Vice-Chancellor, University of Benin
? Dr. Mike Egboh, Country Representative PATH 2, 
?Prof. Kole Omotosho
? Prof. Peter Okebukola, former Executive Secretary, NUC
? Prof.  Zachariah Debo Adeyewa, Vice-Chancellor, Redeemer's University, Ede
? Mr. Odia Ofeimun, Renowned  Writer and Poet
? Prof. Adebiyi Daramola, Vice-Chancellor, FUTA
? Prof. O Bamiro, former Vice-Chancellor, University of Ibadan
? Dr. Joshua Attah, Head of ICT, NUC
? Prof. Idowu Olayinka, Vice-Chancellor, University of Ibadan
? Prof. Nimi Briggs, former Vice-Chancellor, University of Port Harcourt
? Prof. Richard Anao, former Vice-Chancellor, University of Benin 
? Prof. M. O. Faborode, Secretary General, Committee of Vice-Chancellors.

Apart from the retreat/capacity building workshop for staff, the University has also put in place a Short 
Course/Training Committee to plan and organize short term courses and training programmes in the University.  To 
date, the Committee has successfully organized three (3) training programmes with participants drawn from 
different tertiary institutions across the country and from the Gambia. These training programmes are titled; 
Reducing Maternal Mortality in West and Central Africa, Basic Life Support (BLS) Training Programme and Short 
Course on Grant Proposal Writing and Financial Management in Tertiary Institutions.  
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STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING 
As part of the University's policy of improving the capacity of its staff, the Management has continued to support 
staff to acquire additional qualifications in order to enhance their effectiveness and efficiency on the job. In that 
regard, approval had been granted to two (2) academic staff to further their studies abroad and one (1) non-
teaching staff to pursue Post graduate Diploma Certificate. In addition, the University has continued to encourage 
and support staff to attend local and international administrative and scientific conferences.

COMMITTEE SYSTEM OF GOVERNANCE
To give credence to and fast track the decision making process, the University Management has adopted the 
committee system of governance in all spheres of its administration.  Apart from the statutory Council and Senate 
committees, there are also various administrative and ad-hoc committees, which have been constituted to ensure 
the participation of all stakeholders in the decision-making process. These committees meet periodically or as 
occasions demand and make recommendations to the University Management on issues referred to them.
 
STAFF WELFARE
The University has continued to make staff welfare its priority despite the meager resources available to it.  
Substantial progress has however, been made in the following areas:
i. Contributory Pension Scheme
ii. Establishment of a Co-operative Society to assist staff to meet their financial and material need 
iii. Approval of salary advance/Loans
iv. Training and development through conferences, in-house seminars and higher academic pursuit.

THE UNIVERSITY REGISTRY
The University Registry is headed by a consummate and seasoned university administrator, Dr. (Mrs.) E. F. 
Oyebade, mni. The Registry provides the needed support to the academic organs for the sustenance of the young 
University. As at November, 2016, the University has a total number of 145 staff (Academic Staff 48, Senior 
Administrative and Technical Staff 62 and 37 Junior Staff). 

DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF GUIDELINES, PROCEDURES AND ADMINISTRATIVE 
MANUALS
The Registry has taken the initiative of developing appropriate guidelines and procedures to guide the operations of 
the University. The Standing Orders of Council and Senate had been developed and adopted for use by the two 
statutory bodies for the conduct of their businesses. Administrative manuals such as the Conditions of Service for 
Junior and Senior Staff, Scheme of Service for Senior and Junior Staff, Schedule of Duties for Staff, Registry 
Manual, Students' Handbook of Information, Security and Safety Manual, Financial Regulations Manual, etc. had 
been developed and approved by the Governing Council for the use of the University.    

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
A practical measurement and evaluation procedure has been put in place to measure the performance of the 
various departments and units. Such performance evaluation mechanisms include: the periodic review of 
activities of departments/units to assess the impact and progress made so far, the use of lecturers' evaluation forms 
and staff appraisal forms. 
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ICT DEVELOPMENT  
The Information and Communication Technology Centre has the mandate to develop and maintain an ICT 
roadmap for the University to achieve effective internal governance and global excellence. It is saddled with the 
responsibility of ensuring an IT-driven environment based on modern technology. It is a central service unit that 
provides IT facilities for teaching, research and consultancy services within the university and to the outside world. 

DEVELOPMENT OF 5 -YEAR ICT PLAN 
In order to properly guide the unit, a 5-year (i.e. 2016  2020) plan with the following goals was drawn:
To create visibility of UNIMED among Nigerian Universities by 2017; ensure that all buildings and facilities in 
UNIMED are fully connected to the Internet by 2018; provide E-Learning Management System platform for 
teaching and research by 2018; deploy Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) solutions for University transactions 
by 2019; to provide IT competencies for staff, students and host community by 2017; ensure that UNIMED is 
provided with state of art ICT Centre 2018; ensure provision of communication and security infrastructure 2017; 
recruit and train 10 personnel in different areas of IT to meet the University IT requirements.

MANAGEMENT OF INTERNET SERVICES
The University currently subscribes to the Nigerian Research and Education Network (NgREN) Infrastructure for 
internet access provision.

WEBSITE AND PORTAL DEVELOPMENT 
In the year under review, the University hosted a University website (www.unimedondo.edu.ng). The website was 
populated with relevant contents from the various faculties, departments and units of the University. 

NETWORKING OF UNITS AND DEPARTMENTS
The administrative building, Bursary department and the Faculty of Basic Medical Sciences was equipped with 
both wire and wireless Local Area Network.

USER SUPPORT SERVICES
The ICT Unit also offers user support services and training for students and staff. 
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DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF FUND-RAISING STRATEGIC PLAN
Universities, globally, have multiple sources of funding. The University of Medical Sciences, Ondo primarily 
receives funds from the State Government; however, the national economic recession and the dwindling 
government resources has made it difficult to depend on government funding alone for developing the university. 
Consequently, it became expedient for the University to develop and implement different fund-raising strategies to 
facilitate its infrastructural growth and development.

The University's fund-raising objective is to generate funds to finance the University's development projects in a 
short period of time. The University aims to internally generate at least 25% of UNIMED budgetary needs by the 
year 2018.

ACTIVITIES TO ATTAIN THE OBJECTIVES
As a result of the need to increase the University's funding sources, the Governing Council at its meeting held on 
February 18, 2016, decided to establish the Friends of UNIMED FUND (FUF) and Friends of UNIMED Network 
(FUN) for the purpose of obtaining the resources to grow the University to attain its mission and vision statements 
within a short period of time.  The objectives of the UNIMED FUF are twofold: 1) to build a multitude of friends for 
the University who will see themselves as joint owners, and therefore be willing to make regular contributions 
towards the development of the University; and 2) to manage the Fund in a transparent, effective and accountable 
manner for specific identifiable projects on research, service delivery and development of the University.

The idea is to generate a cohort of friends for the university who will make regular, small and determined financial 
contributions towards the implementation of specific projects in the University.  It is not the size of individual 
contributions that will matter, but rather the number and consistency of the contributors.  The goal of the 
University is to attract one million faithful friends who make annual donations of at least one thousand naira 
(N1000) each.  This will amount to about One Billion Naira each year, enough to embark on major developmental 
projects each year for the University.
 
Other major Fund raising strategies of the University include the establishment of UNIMED Consults and 
organisation of Short Course Programmes

ESTABLISHMENT OF A FUND-RAISING COMMITTEE AND ADVANCEMENT OFFICE
To achieve its fund raising objectives a Fund-Raising Committee was established. Membership of the committee, 
chaired by a member of the university's Governing Council, High Chief Olusola Adeduro, also includes the Vice-
Chancellor and the Registrar. Apart from the committee, which has the primary responsibility of raising funds for 
the institution, the Advancement and Documentation Unit was also created in March 2016. The unit under the 
supervision of a director also has a fund raising programme officer. 
Both the Fund raising Committee and the A&D unit have continued to supervise the university's drive for generating 
funds, especially through the FUF. 
The unit has also secured new sources of funds for the University; received, acknowledged and tracked all 
donations and pledges; and assisted in the development, production and dissemination of support materials for 
fund raising activities 
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The Friends of UNIMED Fund was launched in Ondo on 
Thursday July 7, 2016 at the Oba Adesanoye Civic 
Centre, Ondo. The Launch had in attendance the 
Executive Governor of Ondo State Dr. Olusegun Mimiko, 
CON, the Osemawe of Ondo Kingdom, Oba (Dr.) Victor 
Adesimbo Kiladejo, The Deji of Akure, the Chairman of 
the Governing Council, Prof. O. O. Akinkugbe and 
members of the Governing Council. The event also 
attracted eminent personalities, political office holders, 
corporate organizations, and individuals, traditional and 
religious leaders from both within and outside the State.
The highly colourful event was well attended by at least 
four hundred and fifty (450) guests who enlisted as 
“friends” of the University.  As a follow up to the Ondo 
Launch the FUF was also launched in Abuja on Tuesday 
October 18, 2016. The Abuja event was similarly 
colourful and attended by many dignitaries. At both 
events, friends of the University donated generously to 
the FUF. The University has a plan to launch the FUF in 
Lagos, Port-Harcourt and few other major cities of 
Nigeria. 
 
Apart from cash donations, Items received so far under 
the FUF scheme include refrigerator, laptops, printer, 
cabinets, stabilizers, building blocks, wireless network 

hardware and waste bins, among others.
At the Ondo launch, Chief I. F Akintade, the “Saibi 
Gogou” of Ondo Kingdom donated The School of Basic 
Clinical Sciences. The building is already under 
construction and it is expected to be completed before 
the end of the year. The building when completed would 
be tagged “Isaac Akintade Faculty of Basic Clinical 
Sciences”.

The quote 'Small Acts, When Multiplied by Millions of 
People Can Transform the World'  Howard Zinn is the 
FUF mantra. At the end of October 2016, the FUF 
network had realised almost 20 million naira in cash 
and pledges and more people are getting enlisted to the 
network. (See appendix ..... for details of donors}

LAUNCH OF 

FRIENDS OF UNIMED FUND
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BUDGET AND FINANCIAL PROCEDURES
The establishment of a new institution requires significant financial investments and the budgetary, audit and 
financial procedures of this institution can determine its survival or orchestrate its demise. At UNIMED, the culture 
of honesty, transparency and consistency set forth by the Vice Chancellor is the basis of the Bursary, Audit and 
other financial departments. The University is dedicated to utilize all acquired funds judiciously and only for the 
sole purpose of developing the University while actualizing its vision, mission and goals.  

To accomplish the day-to-day accurate and transparent financial management of the University, the duties of the 
Bursary Department since inception have included the following; received incomes: i.e. school fees and other 
revenues, subventions (capital and recurrent) from the State Government on behalf of the University, made duly 
approved payments to creditors and staff of the University, represented the University as a liaison between the 
management and the appointed University bankers, advised the management on financial matters, monitored 
closely the University's funds deposited in all its bank accounts, effectively utilised and managed the limited 
number of personnel in order to achieve maximum results, etc (See Appendix for our first year audited financial 
report).

INTERNAL/ EXTERNAL AUDITING 
The auditing of the University's finances is an important part of the goal for accuracy and transparency. The 
Internal Audit Department have been responsible for the verification of all financial transactions conducted by the 
University or its designees. To prevent conflict of interest and in an attempt to also verify the internally audited 
University accounts, machineries were set in motion to develop a comprehensive plan with the appointment of an 
external audit Consultant to facilitate the process leading to the preparation of the first external audit document of 
the University (See Appendix for the external Audit Document). The external audit was conducted in accordance 
with Auditing Standards issued by the Nigerian Accounting Standards Board, International Standards on Auditing 
of non-profit making organizations and with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. It also included an 
assessment of the estimates and judgments made by the University officers in the preparation of the Financial 
Statements. The result of the external audit revealed the University kept proper books of accounts and the 
Financial Statements were in agreement with the books. 

TRANSPARENT BUDGET, FINANCIAL AND AUDIT PROCEDURES 
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At the time of establishment of the University, it had no building of its own hence its initial administrative activities 
were conducted at one of the offices at the Trauma Centre of the Medical Village. 

To secure a firm base for the future expansion of the University, the government acquired about 100 hectares of 
land surrounding the existing medical village. As an interim arrangement however, the proposed Pathology unit of 
the medical village was ceded to the University to serve as the temporary office of the Vice-
Chancellor/administrative block.

From this humble beginning however the University has made significant progress in terms of developing its 
infrastructures. Some of the notable infrastructural development projects are:

A. ANATOMY BUILDING
The building, constructed through direct labour, houses the Gross Anatomy, Embryology, Histology practical and 
preparatory laboratories. It also consists of the morgue room, behavioural testing room, laboratory technology 
offices, and the museum.

INFRASTRUCTURAL DEVELOPMENT IN UNIMED
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C. FACULTY OF BASIC MEDICAL SCIENCES
The Faculty building was constructed by the Ondo State Government for the University. The building currently 
houses the library, lecture hall, the Physiology and Biochemistry laboratories.

B. ANIMAL HOUSE
The Animal House, also constructed through direct labour, serves as a habitat for experimental animals.
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E. FACULTY OF BASIC CLINICAL SCIENCES
The building, currently under construction, is donated by Chief Isaac Akintade, the Saibi Gogou of Ondo Kingdom. 
The building is expected to be completed before the end of the year 2016. When completed, it will house the 
Departments of Chemical Pathology, Haematology, Etc.

D. FACULTY OF SCIENCE
The building is located at the Adeyemi College of Education (ACE), Ondo. The building, which was loaned to the 
University by the ACE authorities was rehabilitated, renovated and refurbished by UNIMED. It currently serves as 
lecture halls, staff offices and laboratories for the Faculty.
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F. THE ODOSIDA CAMPUS
The Campus will serve as the new administrative building of the University. The Office of the Vice-Chancellor is 
also expected to move to the new site. The Campus is also expected to house the proposed University Health 
Centre and the Faculty of Allied Health Sciences.

G. THE UNITED NATIONS HABITAT FOR HUMANITY PROJECT
The University submitted proposals and was shortlisted as one of the beneficiaries under the UN Habitat Project. 
The Project includes the construction of Students' hostels and Staff accommodation facilities. 

THE PROPOSED STAFF ACCOMMODATION COVERS THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE FOLLOWING:   

- Vice Chancellor's lodge 

- 5- Bedroom Duplex for Management Staff Quarters

- 4- Bedroom Twin Duplex for Principal Staff and professorial Quarters (option 1)

- 4- Bedroom Bungalow for Principal Staff and professorial Quarters (option 2)

- 3- Bedroom semi-detached for Senior Staff Quarters

- 2- Bedroom semi-detached for Intermediate Staff Quarters

- 1- Bedroom semi-detached for Junior Staff Quarters
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H. POWER SUPPLY
?Purchase and installation of a 30KVA generator for Faculty of Science.
?Installation of 80KVA generator for the University.
?Purchase of three petrol generators for students Hostels at NIEPA

The architectural drawings have been prepared for the Faculty of Dentistry, the Faculty of Clinical Sciences and the 
Library/bookshop building and funds are currently being sourced for the construction of the proposed buildings.

THE PROPOSED STUDENTS' HOSTEL MODELS:

- 336 single bed hostel facility (option 1)

- 224 single bed hostel facility (option 2)
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Perspective View 

Perspective View 

Proposed Faculty Of Sciences 

PROPOSED PRIORITY PROJECTS 2016/ 2017

Proposed Faculty Of Clinical Sciences
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Proposed Faculty Of Dentistry

Proposed Faculty Of Pharmacy
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Proposed Central Research Laboratory  

Proposed Central Administrative Building

Proposed Library, ICT and Bookshop
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Proposed Vice Chancellor's Lodge

Proposed Faculty Of Allied Clinical
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Proposed Staff & Student Cafeteria  

Proposed Electronic Learning Center
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Aerial View 

Approach Impression 

Perspective View 

Proposed School Of Public Health
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mpartation of knowledge is the most important objective of any tertiary institution of learning. In-depth 
knowledge is acquired only when sound academic policies are not only put in place but are duly executed by Iinstitutions of learning. The University of Medical Sciences, in furtherance of its mission, promotes academic 

development through cutting-edge activities.  Notable steps taken toward achieving outstanding and distinctive 
academic development by the University include:

A) DEVELOPMENT OF ACADEMIC BRIEF 
At the time of the appointment of the Vice-Chancellor and the Registrar in 2015, not much academic planning had 
taken place and the National Universities Commission (NUC) had therefore not been approached for formal 
recognition of the University.  
In a bid to set things right from the scratch and to lay a proper and strong foundation upon which its academic 
activities will be built, the Vice-Chancellor working with Professor Eugene Okpere (a government-appointed 
Consultant whom he met on ground) and Professor Tolu Odugbemi, FAS, OON, NNOM (former Vice-Chancellor of 
the Ondo State University of Technology, Okitipupa, (who worked pro bono) developed the draft Academic Brief 
and physical plan of the University. 
A draft of the Academic Brief was further revised by a team of experts from various medical disciplines. The team 
which was constituted by the Vice-Chancellor had to fine-tune the draft to meet the requirements of the NUC. 
Members of the team include:  Professor Sola Ogunniyi (Internal medicine), Professor O Fatusi (Community 
Medicine), Professor Akin Ojo (Dentistry), Professor Obuekwe (Dentistry), Professor A Omonkhua (Biochemistry), 
Dr. Eze (Anatomy) and Professor Abhor Ighorodje (Physiology).

B) NUC RECOGNITION, VISITS AND RESOURCE VERIFICATION 
Upon conclusion of the exercise, the revised Academic Brief together with the Law establishing the University was 
presented by the Governor of Ondo State to the NUC and the University was officially recognized by the NUC as the 

th th40  State University and the 139  University in Nigeria on April 22, 2015.  
This official recognition was followed up by the University's invitation to the NUC to assess its resources and 
facilities before enrolment of students into its medical programmes. The NUC in response to the invitation, 
conducted the first resource verification visit to the University on December 7, 2015 and consequently approved 
the following programmes to be run by the University:
1) Faculty of Clinical Sciences: MBBS
2) Faculty of Dentistry: BDS 
3) Faculty of Basic Medical Sciences: Anatomy, Physiology, Biochemistry
In a bid to ensure expansion whilst not compromising standards, efforts are currently being made to introduce new 
courses and plans are in the pipeline to obtain the necessary approvals and commence programmes in 
Physiotherapy, Nursing, Physics (with options in Physics electronics and medical Physics), Chemistry, 
Mathematics and Biological sciences (with options in Microbiology, Animal and environmental biology, Plant 
biology and Biotechnology).
On October 11, 2016, the University inaugurated the board of the proposed UNIMED School of Public Health. The 
School is among other things to develop a strategic plan for the public health programmes of the University and to 
identify courses and curricula for the Departments.

C) CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT AND ACADEMIC DEPARTMENTS
The following Departments and Centres currently exist in the University: the Department of Biological sciences, 
Department of Anatomy, Department of Biochemistry, Department of Physiology, Department of Community 
Health, Department of Physics and the Centre for General and Entrepreneurship studies.

To ensure that the departmental academic activities are carried out in compliance with existing and acceptable 
standards, the University set up a Curriculum Development Committee which has the mandate to develop sound 
and qualitative academic curriculum for the existing Departments in the University.

The Curriculum Development Committee comprising of notable Professors in the respective fields of medical 
sciences, received valuable contributions from the lecturers in the respective departments and met to consider and 
update the various contributions as they deemed necessary.

A comprehensive curriculum has thus been drawn up for each Department in the University. The intention is to 
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regularly review and update the existing curriculum to ensure that it meets up with international standards and 
trends. 

D) UNIVERSITY LIBRARY AND E-LEARNING FACILITIES
The University Library exists to serve the objective of its parent organization, and as such, the University Library 
must not only circulate knowledge but must also support teaching, research and community service.
In furtherance of this, the University in July, appointed a Special Adviser on Library Resources to assist with the 
acquisition of relevant books and journals.

The University Library is currently housed in a temporary building within the University with a sitting capacity for 
150 readers pending the construction of a permanent University Library building. 
The University currently provides open access to Library resources through the use of Library catalogues and on-
line facilities; reprographic services; selective dissemination of information (SDI); and internet services.    Plans 
are in progress to automate the operations of the Library. When completed, it would enhance the Universities 
operations by introduction of Cataloguing, Serials, Acquisitions, Administration and Special Collection modules.

The University Library currently has over 2000 volumes of books and subscribes to several foreign and local 
journals. This is in addition to several books and journal accessed through our e-library and academic database.

Librarians in the University Library are also involved in teaching of the GES 112 (Use of Library, Study Skills, and 
Information and Communication Technology).

E) GUEST LECTURES 
As a way of promoting town-and-gown relationship, the University has instituted the guest lecture series. The 
series is aimed at disseminating information from the academia to the community on varied national and topical 
issues, especially as they relate to health matters.
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STTHE 1  DISTINGUISHED GUEST LECTURE
The first distinguished lecture series titled “We Reap What We Sow” was delivered by the Emeritus Professor of 
Obstetrics and Gynaecology and a former Vice-Chancellor of the University of Port Harcourt, Professor Kelsey A. 

thHarrison MD, DSc. (London), FRCOG, FMCOG held on Wednesday 15  June, 2016. 

The maiden Lecture was well attended by heads of tertiary institutions, representatives of clinical and academic 
community as well as dignitaries from diverse backgrounds.

The University has also fixed its first Founder's Day Lecture for Thursday December 8, 2016. The Lecture will be 
delivered by the Executive Secretary of the NUC, Prof. Rasheed Abubakar.  

F) SHORT-TERM TRAINING PROGRAMMES 
1. The University conducted a 2-week Certificate course on: “Maternal mortality prevention in West and Central 
Africa”. The Course which was hosted by the University was conducted in collaboration with the Centre of 
Excellence in Reproductive Health Innovation (CERHI), University of Benin and the Mother and Child Hospital, 

nd thOndo. The Course took place from 2  to 12  May, 2016 and was attended by participants from institutions in 
Nigeria and other African countries. 

2. In August 2016, the University organised a workshop on Master Grant Proposal Writing and Financial 
Management in Tertiary Institutions. Facilitators at the 3-day course included serving and former Vice-Chancellors 

nd thand administrators with notable experience in the areas of focus. The short course took place from 22  to 24  
August, 2016 at the Lecture Hall of the Faculty of Basic Medical Sciences.   
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G) UNIMED RESEARCH, PUBLICATIONS AND TRAINING COMMITTEE
In June 2016, the Vice Chancellor constituted the Research, Publications and Training Committee of the 

thUniversity. The Committee had its inaugural meeting on 17  June, 2016.
Since its inception, the Committee has received and considered proposals for the TETFUND Institution-based 
Research Intervention and the shortlisted proposals are being finalised for submission to the TETFUND office in 
Abuja.
The Committee serves as a collation unit for all research publications of the University. The Committee also 
actively disseminates information on research opportunities, conferences, fellowship and grants available to staff.

H) UNIMED WEEKLY RESEARCH SEMINARS
In October 2016, the Vice Chancellor introduced the compulsory Weekly Research Seminars for all academic staff 
of the University. The research seminars creates a platform for members of the University Community to present 
their ongoing or proposed research proposals to their colleagues for comments, queries and other perspectives 
which will further assist the researchers to conduct a more qualitative and academically sound research exercise.

thThe first Research seminar was held on 27  October, 2016 and series of seminars have 
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I) STUDENT SATISFACTORY SURVEY
In a bid to ensure that the relevant needs of the students are given utmost priority in the infrastructural 
development of the University, a students' survey was conducted at the end of the first semester, 2015/2016 
academic session. The questionnaire-based survey was conducted to ascertain the students' perception and views 
on the facilities in place at the University. 

At the end of the survey, the students were adjudged to be largely satisfied with the academic and infrastructural 
facilities available. 
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J) LECTURERS' EVALUATION SURVEY
thThe University Senate at its 11  Statutory Meeting constituted a Committee for the evaluation of all lecturers in the 

employment of the University. The parameters on which the Lecturers were to be evaluated include, the lecturers' 
punctuality, teaching abilities, relationship with students, and accessibility to students, among others.

At the end of the 2015/2016 academic session, the Committee in furtherance of its mandate distributed the 
questionnaires which were filled anonymously by the students and the data obtained from the forms is currently 
being analysed by the Academic Planning Division.
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K)   AWARDS AND RECOGNITION
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L)   CONFERENCE AND WORKSHOPS
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COMMUNITY LIAISON COMMITTEE AND WORK WITH THE ONDO DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
In order for any institution to record success, it is aligned with multiple stakeholders. The University of Medical 
Sciences has many stakeholders including the community in which it is situated. To manage the operations of the 
University while taking into account the opportunity for partnership with the community, the Community Liaison 
Committee was created. This committee's mandate includes aligning the resources available from the University 
with the needs of the community. The Ondo Development Committee (ODC) represents the interests of the 
community and has a very strong working relationship with the University. The University Registrar is a member of 
ODC and several members of ODC have visited the University. In addition, during the University's fund raising 
visits, Principal Officers and key staff members visited some ODC members who also happen to be prominent 
members of the community including Otunba Fadayomi (Chairman, ODC), High Chief Adeduro (Member, ODC) 
and Chief I. F. Akintade (Member, ODC). The University patronized the ODC in its recent magazine publication and 
utilizes the Oba Adesanoye Civic Center (owned by the ODC) for events outside the Trauma Village.
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PLAN TO DEVELOP A HERBAL MEDICINAL FARM
In order achieve the University's goals as a world class institution, UNIMED is invested in several out-of-the-box 
cutting edge innovations. According to the 5-year Strategic Plan for the University, the Department of Biological 
Sciences plans to be one of the top five sought after Departments in the Country offering innovative courses in Bio-
Science that will take into consideration technological advances in orthodox and herbal medicine.

TOWN-GOWN INTERACTIONS
University of Medical Sciences, Ondo is fast becoming a pillar in the community and is now a household name. 
Several prominent citizens of this City have been to the University to visit and demonstrate interest in supporting 
one way or the other. Some of the individuals who visited include Hon. Remi Okunriboye, King Sunny Ade, Engr. 
Kola Olasehinde, etc. The University has also entrenched itself into the culture of the City as it had a presence 
during the Ogun Festival and plans on obtaining a display booth at the Ekimogun day celebration this year. Key 
administrative staff have also paid personal visits to monarchs in Ondo including the Osemawe of Ondo Kingdom, 
the Deji of Akure, the Olugbo of Ugbo Land, the Olukare of Ikare, the Olowo of Owo, etc.  
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SECURITY AND GOOD RELATIONS COMMITTEE
The security of the administrators, faculty and staff of the University is of paramount importance hence the 
solicitation of a professional security outfit. In addition to the excellent training and responsibilities of the security 
officers at UNIMED, the Security and Good Relations Committee was created. The committee is responsible for 
interfacing with all security organizations within the state including the Nigerian Police Force, Federal Road Safety 
Commission, the Secret Service, etc. During University based events within and outside the premises, the 
aforementioned units are consulted to usher, direct traffic and keep the staff, students and guests safe. A majority 
of the University security officers are also indigenes of Ondo State.
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LIST OF PIONEER STUDENTS, DECEMBER 2015
MEDICINE

Adediran Enoch Boluwarin

Adeleye Tolulope Ayomide

Adewoyin Peace Oluwanifise

Adeyankinnu Tope

Adeyemi Adeleke Adekunle

Adeyemo Dimeji Sunday

Agbaje Halleluyah Daniel

Agiang Joy Andoukie

Ajibola Oluwafemi Tope

Akinbi Oluwatosin Temitope

Akinbosede Oluwadamilola Ifeoluwa

Akinduro Praise Nifemi

Akinkurolere Olawale Moses

Akosile Olubunmi Charles

Ale Oluwatomiwa Ayomikun

Aleriwa John Ayodele

Ambali Mayowa Bidemi

Anyanwu Chibuzo Christian

Dinehin Adebayo Valentine

Ebiseni Akinbobola Adedamola

Ejesieme Chidinma Esther

Eromosele Thomas Godswill

Eseigbe Kofoworola Daisy

Fabelurin Fehintoluwa Miriam

Faleye Titilayo Ayomide

Gold Mofehintoluwa Faith

Ijatuyi Oluwatomisin Abiola

Ilemobola Opeyemi Olajumoke

Ishola Risikat Atinuke

James Emeka Chimela

Jide Ebithibituwawei Baptist

Jimoh Philips Shina

Kolawole Rereloluwa Victoria

Kuboye Olaoluwa Daniel

Mayeko Oluwadamilola Oluwakemi

Mustapha Ahmed Olawale

Nwabueze John Chukwudi

Obitusin Ebunoluwa Olawale

Ogedengbe Oluyemi Emmanuel

Okonkwo Magnus Ifeanyi

Olagundoye Olaoluwa Uriel

Oladunjoye Olumide Samuel

Olalekan Olayinka Vincent

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

STUDENT'S FULL NAMES LEVEL STUDENT'S FULL NAMES LEVEL

Oluboyo Ganiyat Adewumi

Olunuyi Ruth Iyioluwa

Oluwafemi Precious Oluwaseyi

Omoloja Oyinkansola Aderinsola

Osasona Oluwadarafunmi Abigael

Osokoya Fogooluwahan Esther

Oyelere Doyinsola Jesse

Ubaka Chukwuka Divine

Wakwe Vincent Onyebuchi

Yusuf Marvellous Oluwasegun

Zibiri Anne Osimokhua

Abdulraheem Olamide Sakirudeen

Adanigbo Bukola Ifeoluwa

Adara Motunrayo Oluwatofunmi

Adegbola Juliana Oluwatoyin

Adegbolaga Adebowale Aderotoluwa

Adenowo Peter Taiwo

Adeoyo Paul Ayodeji

Aderemi Temitope Ebenezer

Aderibigbe John Tony

Adeniran Adedamola Felicia

Ajabaluku Olusola Anthony

Akinmoju Oluwabusyomi Mojisola

Akinnagbe-Gbenga OladipoOlarewaju

Akinnawonu Olusegun Olaleye

Akinpelumi Akinyemi Sunday

Akinsanmi Oluwasanmi Isaac

Alade Samuel

Brume Emuobonuvie Francis

Ejedafeta Victory Oghenechoja

Ige Olarewaju Olumide

Ikuomase Daniels Henry

Iperepolu Omotayo Charles

Johnson Bukola Abimbola

Kayode Oluwaseun Mayowa

Kolawole Bridget Olayinka

Lade-Ige Toluwani Stephen

Lamidi Rafiat Damilola

Momodu Rafiu Inaboya

Ogedengbe Oyinkansola Seun

Ogundowo Funmilayo Elizabeth

Ogunmokun Oluwaseyitan Abigael

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200
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DENTISTRY

Abiodun Fayokemi Patricia

Agbede Damilola Johnson

Aigbogun Bright Eric

Alagha Blessing Adesola

Ayoola Ayodeji Samson

Bello Adebanke Covenant

Eyefia Jemima Ese

Fabamise Adeoluwa Oluwagbemiga

Ighile Elliot Osamwo

Ogunbode Oluwadamilola Mercy

Ogungbemi Dennis Ayodeji

Ogunmola Eniola Stephenson

Ojo George Oyindamola

Olaniyi Folake Frances

Oluwajunse Oluwatobiloba Israel

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

MEDICINE

STUDENT'S FULL NAMES LEVEL STUDENT'S FULL NAMES LEVEL

Oguntola Rafiu Ayinla

Ohonbamu Uyioghosa Valentine

Ola Olamide Oluwaseun

Olabisi Fareedah Oluwadamilola

Oladesemola Joy Omolola

Oladokun Mayowa Gilbert

Olaogun Ibukun David

Oloruntola Bamidele Joshua

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

Oloyede Rasheed Olanshile

Osamor Ugochukwu Godson

Raheem Dare Joseph

Solomon Kayode Iyodaro

Talabi Oluwagbenga Akinwale

Talabi Olumayowa Omolara

Yisau Olawale Elijah

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

STUDENT'S FULL NAMES LEVEL STUDENT'S FULL NAMES LEVEL

Omirin Olaide Gladys

Osazee Jeremiah Osazee

Salami Tioluwani Love

Sarimakin  Joy Wemimo

Shofoyeke Ademolu Babatomiwa  

Adegbite Anthony Adebolu

Adufe Abimbola Olayinka

Ayanola Toluwalope David

Azeez Hafez Olawale

Erezi-Kezi Eloho Osayimwense

Ogunleye Temiloluwa Ayomide

Olupona Akinwonuola Bolaji

Tariah Onengiye-ofori Selema

100

100

100

100

100

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

ANATOMY

Adejumo  Adenike Ayomide

Ade-turton Erikanyinsade Adediwura

Ajidagba Dolapo Patience

Akinro Akintunde Akolawole

Aroso Oluwatosin Abiola

Balogun Emmanuel Oluwafemi

Chukwubem Emeka Precious

Chuwudebe Favour Onuchukwu

Daodu Richard Olumide

Etobechi Samuel obinna

Fasola Ifedayo Esther

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

STUDENT'S FULL NAMES LEVEL STUDENT'S FULL NAMES LEVEL

Folarin Beatrice Olajumoke

Ibrahim Adeyemi Mubarak

Nenuwa Oluwaseun Esther

Obadare Blessing Olubusola

Oladele Tolulope Samuel

Olagoke Daramola Timilehin

Oludare Shallom Esther

Oludipe Heritage Isaac

Omosowon Adejoke Josephine

Sowole Temitope Abimbola

Ugwunnamuchi Esther Onyinyemi

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100
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BIOCHEMISTRY

Adelola Oluwatoyosi Naomi

Adewole Babade Adesite

Akinmoye Daniel Oluwasegun

Akinsehinde Aanuoluwapo Esther

Akinyemi Ifeoluwatomi Oyinkansola

Fola-Dara Funmilayo Stella

Henry Abumere Momoh

Ikheloa Osememen Otekpen

Jola-Moses Micheal Oluwaseyi

Kayode Bright Olakunle

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

PHYSIOLOGY

Adams Annah Itohan

Adeleke Oluwatobiloba Daniel

Aderinwale Anuoluwapo Adebisi

Adesida Adedayo Oluwadamilola

Adetula Blessing Ayomipo

Adewumi Nifemi Adebukola

Afolabi Moriah Oluwatomi

Ajao Bolanle Zeenat

Akingbule Francis Olakunle

Awani Eworitsemogha

Ayibiowu Oluwabukola Mary

Ayotomide Damilola Ayodele

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

STUDENT'S FULL NAMES LEVEL STUDENT'S FULL NAMES LEVEL

Micheal Jerry Emmanuel

Obazi Desmond Nosa

Ogegere Oghenefega Sheila

Ogunbodede Ewaoluwa Olayinka

Olafusi Celestina Oluwaseun

Oluwadare Esther Eniola

Omoghan Nathatcher Hope

Osedele Tofunmi Sarah

Ubaka Ekene Favour

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

STUDENT'S FULL NAMES LEVEL STUDENT'S FULL NAMES LEVEL

Babatunde Sunkanmi Henry

Dada Emmanuel Oluwadamilare

Dare Boluwatife Isaac

Fabode Babanifemi Lucy

Kolawole Morayo Oluwabusola

Ogbeifun John Efosa

Ogunmiluyi Oluwafunmbi Ebenezer

Oluwalana Ololade Elizabeth

Omotuyi Oluwapelumi Kolade

Owodunni Deborah Adenike

Oyedele Susan Ifeoluwa

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100
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Visitor Dr. Olusegun Mimiko, CON

Pro-Chancellor and 
Chairman of Council

Emeritus Prof. Oladipo O. 
Akinkugbe, CFR

Vice-Chancellor Professor Okonofua Friday 
Ebhodaghe, FAS

Registrar Dr (Mrs) Oyebade Eunice 
Funke, mni

Ag. Bursar Mr Fabusuyi Abraham 
Oladiran, FCA

University 
Librarian/Special Adviser 
on Library resources

Mr Akinfolarin William 
Abiodun, CLN

PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE UNIVERSITYFounded: April 22, 2015                                          
Proprietor: Ondo State Government  
Language of Instruction: English
Academic Year: October-September 

Vision Statement
The vision of UNIMED is to be a thriving medical and health 
sciences University, locally, nationally and internationally 
recognized for excellence and innovation in health education 
and research, with ability to translate research findings for the 
improvement of health.

Mission Statement
The Mission of the University of Medical Sciences (UNIMED) 
is to provide integrated education and research of exceptional 
quality in all health-related sciences; to expand access to 
compassionate, comprehensive and high-quality health care 
for under-served populations and to lead the scientific 
pathway for reducing the burden of disease in our society.

Faculty of Basic medical Sciences      Faculty of Clinical Sciences
Faculty of Science      Faculty of Dentistry
Faculty of Pharmacy      Centre for Enterpreneurial and General Studies

Female,
82,
43%

Male,
110,
57%

Female,
43,
29% Male,

104,
71%

Distribution of Students by Gender Distribution of Total Staff by Gender

2015/2016 
S T A T I S T I C S

UNIVERSITY OF MEDICAL SCIENCES
Motto: For Learning and Community Service

ACADEMIC STRUCTURE 
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Distribution of Students by State of origin
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Distribution of Students by Age Category

Male Female

15-20
years

21-25
years

26-30
years

31-35
years

83 75 

15 6 9 1 3 0

STUDENT STATISTICS

Male Female   Total 

Full-time 110 82   192

Number in the School Hostel 41 44   85

By Level of Programme
Undergraduate
100 Level 73 65   138
200 Level 37 17   54

By Department
Anatomy 9 13   22
Biochemistry 8 11   19
Dentistry 16 12   28
Medicine and Surgery 67 33   100
Physiology 10 13   23

By State of Origin
Abia 1 -   1
Cross River - 1   1
Delta 7 6   13
Ebonyi 1 -   1
Edo 11 4   15
Ekiti 16 5   21
Enugu - 1   1
Imo 3 1   4
Kwara 1 -    1
Lagos 1 1   2
Ogun 7 8   15
Ondo 49 46   95
Osun 9 6   15
Oyo 3 3   6
Rivers 1 -   1
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Distribution of Teaching Staff by Rank

Assistant
Lecturer

30%

Prof./Assoc.
Prof.
20%

Senior
Lecturer

12%
Lecturer I

& II
38%

By State of Origin
Abia 1 -      1
Anambra - 1    1
Delta 3 -    3
Edo 8 2    10
Ekiti 4 1    5
Enugu 2 -    2
Imo 2 -    2
Kwara 1 -    1
Ogun 2 1    3
Ondo 9 4    13
Osun 4 -    4
Oyo 4 1    5

Male Female    Total

By Department
Anaesthesiology 1 -    1
Anatomy 8 1    9
Biochemistry 5 2    7
Biological sciences 2 3    5
Chemistry 3 1    4
Dentistry - -    -
Entrepreneurial and 
General Studies 2 1    3
Library 4 1    5
Obstetrics and 
Gynaecology 2 -    2
Paediatrics 2 -    2
Pharmacy 1 -    1
Physics 4 -    4
Physiology 6 1    7 

Male Female    Total

Male     Female       Total

NON-TEACHING 
STAFF 64         33           97

By Category
Senior Administrative 33 17 50
Senior Secretarial 4 6 10
Senior Technical 5 2 7
Junior Staff 22 8 30

By Departments/
Units of Assignment
Academic Planning Unit 2 - 2
Advancement Office 1 - 1
Animal House - 2 2
Audit Unit 2 - 2
Biological Sciences 1 - 1
Bursary 7 3 10
Counselling Unit - 1 1
Information Communication 
Technology 2 1 3                                                       

Male Female    Total

TEACHING STAFF 40 10    50

By Rank
Professor 9 -    9
Associate professor 1 -    1
Senior Lecturer 5 1    6
Lecturer I 6 1    7
Lecturer II 9 3    12
Assistant Lecturer 10 5    15

By Faculty
Basic Medical Sciences 19 4    23
Clinical Sciences 5 -    5
Entrepreneurial and 
General Studies 2 1    3
Library 4 1    5
Pharmacy 1 -    1
Sciences 9 4    13

Library 1 - 1
Physical Planning Unit 2 2 4
Public Relations Office 2 1 3
Registry 18 14 32
Security 11 3 14
Students' Affairs Unit 6 6 12
Work and Services Unit 9 - 9

By State of  Origin
Abia 2 1   3
Akwa Ibom - 1   1
Anambra 2 -   2
Delta 1 3   4
Edo 8 2   10
Ekiti 2 2   4
Kaduna 1 -   1
Kogi 1 -   1
Ogun 2 -   2
Ondo 39 22   61
Osun 5 1   6
Oyo 1 1   2
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Contact Details
Academic Planning Unit

Office of the Vice-Chancellor, 
University of Medical Sciences

Laje Road, Medical Village, Ondo City, Ondo State, Nigeria.
E-mail: dap@unimeds.edu.ng        

Percentage of Teaching Staff with Ph.D

LIBRARY

PHYSIOLOGY

PHYSICS

CHEMISTRY

BIOCHEMISTRY

BIOLOGICAL SCIENCES

ANATOMY

ENTREPRENEUR AND...

PHARMACY

PAEDIATRICS

OBSTERICS AND...

ANAESTHESIOLOGY

0.0

14.3

25.0

25.0

28.6

40.0

44.4

66.7

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

Distribution of Non-teaching Staff by CategoryDistribution by Level of Study

200

Level

28%
100

Level

72%

Junior

Staff

31% Senior

Administrative

52%
Senior

Technical

7%
Senior

Secretarial

10%
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ADMINISTRATORS/ ACADEMIC AND NON-ACADEMIC STAFF 
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UNIMED ECHO
The UNIMED ECHO is a University based magazine is part of a drive to deliver a University of pride while 
communicating events occurring within and around the University to Council Members, management, Staff, 
Students, Stakeholders and the community as a whole. 

PUBLICATIONS AND NEWSLETTERS

UNIMED Tit Bits
UNIMED TIT BITS is an In-House University Newsletter geared towards the dissemination of University related 
information to Management, Faculty, Staff and Students. Some of the information shared through the UNIMED TIT 
BITS include; conferences, upcoming events, awards and recognitions, birthdays, etc. 
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APPENDICES

The main objective behind this is to raise fund and thus complement the normal subvention receivable by the 
University from the State Government. In effect, it is another source of Internally Generated Revenue (IGR) to the 
university.

The original intention is to raise one billion naira from one million friends of the University both within Nigeria and in 
diaspora with at least N1000 per donor.

thThe above fund i.e. FUF was formally launched on 7  July, 2016 at Oba Adesanoye Civic Centre Ondo City, Ondo, 
although the conception of the idea began in March, 2016. The event was a huge success and was attended by 
important dignitaries such as His Excellency, the Ondo State Governor, Dr Olusegun Mimiko, UNIMED Governing 
Council, Royal majesties including Osemawe of Ondo City, Oba Victor Kiladejo, High Chiefs and lots more.

To date the total sum of N12,711,328.64 had been generated and deposited in the two bank accounts dedicated for the 
purpose.

For further details, below is the list of banks where the money is domiciled:
BANK ACCOUNT NUMBER AMOUNT(N)
Zenith Bank, Yaba, Ondo 1014662945 5,732,117.50
First Bank, Yaba, Ondo 2030056765 6,979,211.14
TOTAL 12,711,328.64

However, the project is still ongoing.
Thank you

FABUSUYI ABRAHAM O.
Ag. Bursar

REPORT ON FRIENDS OF UNIMED FUND (FUF)

UNIVERSITY OF MEDICAL SCIENCES
Ondo City, Ondo State
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MANAGEMENT REPORT ON 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS
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PRINCIPAL OFFICERS

BANKERS

AUDITORS

Prof. Okonofua, Friday Ebhodaghe, FAS - Vice-Chancellor
Dr. (Mrs.) Oyebade, Eunice Funke, mni - Registrar
Mr. Fabusuyi, Abraham Oladiran, FCA - Ag. Bursar
Mr. Akinfolarin Williams Abiodun, CLN - Librarian

Wema Bank Plc-Yaba, Ondo
First Bank Plc-Yaba, Ondo

Zenith Bank Plc-Yaba, Ondo

Messrs Akinlolu Akinkuade & Co.
(Chartered Accountants)

120, Hospital Road, Akure, Ondo State, Nigeria.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS
Prof. Oladipo O. Akinkugbe

Pro-Chancellor and Chairman of Council

Prof. Okonofua, Friday Ebhodaghe, FAS

Vice-Chancellor

Mrs. Olufunmilayo Amodu

High Chief Johnson O. Adeduro

Dr. (Mrs.) Kofo Odusote

Prof. Fola Esan, FAS

Dr. Bisi Jagun, MD

Prof. Tolu Odugbemi, OON, NNOM, FAS

Dr. (Mrs.) Chinelo Nwosu

Arch. Jide Adejuyigbe

Dr. Dayo Adeyanju

Chief Yele Ogundipe

Dr. (Mrs.) Oyebade, Eunice Funke, mni
Registrar and Secretary to Council
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF UNIVERSITY OF MEDICAL 
SCIENCES, ONDO FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

We have examined the Financial Statements set out on pages 6 to 8 which have been prepared 
under the historical cost convention and on the basis of the accounting policies set out on page 5. 

Respective Responsibilities of Management and Auditors
The management is responsible for the preparation of the Financial Statements which give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the University at the end of each financial year and of its 
surplus or deficit for that year and comply with the requirements of University of Medical Sciences 
Statute. It is our responsibility as the auditors to form an independent opinion based on our audit 
on those statements and report our opinion to you.

Basis of Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Nigerian Accounting 
Standards Board, International Standards on Auditing of non-profit making organizations and with 
the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of 
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements. It also includes an 
assessment of the estimates and judgments made by the University officers in the preparation of 
the Financial Statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the 
University's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all information and explanations which we 
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance 
that the Financial Statements are free from misstatement, whether caused by fraud, other 
irregularity or error. In forming our opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the 
presentation of the University's Financial Statements.

Opinion
In our opinion, the University has kept proper books of accounts and the Financial Statements 
which are in agreement with the books, give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
University as at December 31, 2015 and its surplus of income over expenditure and of the cash flow 
for the year then ended and comply with the requirements of University of Medical Sciences 
Statute.

AKURE, NIGERIA Signed:
SEPTEMBER, 2016 AKINLOLU AKINKUADE B.Sc, MBA, FCA

FRC/2013/ICAN/00000003031
FOR: AKINLOLU AKINKUADE & CO.
(CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following is a summary of the significant Accounting Policies adopted by the University in the 
preparation of the Financial Statements.

i. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The Financial Statements of the University have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention.

ii. FIXED ASSETS
Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

iii. DEPRECIATION
Depreciation of Fixed Assets is calculated on the straight-line basis at the following rates to 
write off their cost over their estimated useful lives.
Land and Buildings 2%
Motor Vehicles 25%
Furniture and Fittings 15%
Plant and Office Equipment 15%
Science Laboratory and Other Equipment 20%
Library Books 5%
Computer and ICT Facilities 12½%
However, no provision has been made for depreciation in these accounts because most of 
the concerned assets were put into use for a period less than three (3) months during the 
reported period.

iv. STOCKS
Stocks are stated at Cost or Net Realizable Value.

v. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
The Financial Statements are the first set of statements to be prepared by the University; 
hence, there are no comparative figures.

PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS         1 

 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and Bank Balances          2  

 

DEDUCT: CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable   

 

Net Current Assets 

 

FINANCED BY: 

Accumulated Fund   

 

  NOTE  N 

24,168,565 

 

 

132,323,149 

132,323,149 

 

750,000 

750,000 

131,573,149 

155,741,714 

Pro-Chancellor

Vice-Chancellor

Ag. Bursar

AS AT PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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 NOTE  

 4 

     5 

     6 

     7 

     8 

     9 

INCOME    

ODSG - Recurrent Subvention  

ODSG - Accreditation Subvention  

Other Income     

DEDUCT: EXPENDITURE 

Personnel Emoluments  

Repairs & Maintenance  

Supplies   

Travel and Entertainment  

Rent and Rentals  

Advertisement and Publicity 

Audit and Accountancy Fees 

Bank Charges 

 

Surplus of Income over Expenditure 

110,000,000 

97,600,000 

31,510,300 

239,110,300 

 

 

49,092,078 

2,531,355 

12,612,220 

12,893,352 

58,000 

5,402,327 

750,000 

N 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015
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CASH INFLOWS 

Increase / (Decrease) 

Remittances from ODSG - Recurrent  

Remittances from ODSG - Accreditation 

Other Income     

CASH OUTFLOWS 

(Increase) / Decrease in Assets 

Non-current assets 

Accounts Payable 

Recurrent Expenses 

Financial Charges 

     

Net Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

At July 1, 2015  

Cash and Cash Equivalents at December 31, 2015 

 
REPRESENTED BY: 

Cash and Bank Balances  

   

110,000,000 

97,600,000 

31,510,300 

239,110,300 

 

 

24,168,565 

(750,000) 

83,339,332 

29,254 

106,787,151
 

 

N 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015
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2,895,089 
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2,575,093 
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24,168,565 

2,256,420 

2,256,420 

13,055,000 

13,055,000 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

2. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

Wema Bank Plc - A/C 97171 

First Bank (Salary A/C) - A/C 5381 

First Bank (Accreditation A/C) - A/C 75438 

Zenith Bank (UTME A/C) - A/C 84236 

First Bank (Revenue A/C) - A/C 5199 

Cheque in Transit 

Imprest 

                                                                                                             

3. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE  

Accruals (Audit) 

 

 4. OTHER INCOME 

P-UTME Revenue 

Contractors Registration Fee 

 

 5. PERSONNEL EMOLUMENTS 

 Salaries and Wages 

 Pension 

 

N 

4,471,352

1,014,625

82,979,336

17,950,792

469,744

25,000,000

437,300

132,323,149

750,000

750,000

31,040,300

470,000

31,510,300

46,515,166

2,451,912

Security 

 

 6. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 

Maintenance of Office Equipment 

Maintenance of Motor Vehicles 

Maintenance of Building 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

7. SUPPLIES 

Office Stationery 

Publication and Printing 

P-UTME Examination 

Interview Expenses 

Special Honorarium - Interview 

8. TRAVEL AND ENTERTAINMENT

Travelling Expenses

Office Expenses 

Honorarium for Council Members 

Medical and Dental Council of Nigeria (MDCN) 

Hospitality Expenses 

Planning Committee 

Fueling 

Postage 

Hotel Accomodation 

Fund Raising 

Accreditation Expenses 

Gift and Donation 

 

 

9. RENT AND RENTALS 

 

ICT Internet Subscription

 

N 

741,283 

1,127,957 

2,923,925 

648,820 

7,170,235 

12,612,220 

  

4,444,032 

192,820 

1,370,000 

1,045,600 

1,644,350 

1,252,100 

197,170 

67,620 

792,250 

52,410 

1,000,000 

835,000 

12,893,352 

 

 

58,000 

58,000 
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LIST OF DONORS TO THE FRIENDS OF UNIMED 
BRONZE

FRIENDS OF UNIMED

Abiodun Stephen
Abodunde Modupe 
Abu Tunde
Achime Nwabueze Hyacinth (Prof.)
Achor O. E.  
Adah Gabriel 
Adamu Jibrin (Mallam)
Adara (Pst.)
Adebayo Adebiyi
Adebayo Adebiyi 
Adebayo Adebiyi (Mr)
Adebayo Adeniyi (Pharm.)
Adebayo Victor
Adebiyi Olubunmi
Adeboyeku Feyi
Adedeji Solanke
Adegbite A. E. (Prof.)
Adegbola T.
Adegunloye Fola
Adeiya Olumide
Adejo Victoria 
Adejumo Damilola
Adekalu Adeyinka (Mr)
Adekeye Febisola - Chief (Mrs)
Adekeye Febisola Amope
Adelanke Idris 
Ademoroti C. M. A. (Prof.)
Ademoyegun Isaiah Kolawole
Adenegan Kehinde Emma(Dr)
Adenipekun Olaoluwa
Adeniyi  Ajoke Shuaibu (Mrs)
Adeniyi Ade
Adeniyi Goke
Adeniyi Isaac (Chief)
Adenodi Canon N.O. (Rev.)
Adenusi Temitope Theophulus(Mr)
Adepeju Taiwo L.
Aderinsola Gilbert Felicia (Chief)
Aderoba Adeniyi (Dr.)
Adeseke Stephen Adewale (Hon.)
Adesemoye Segun
Adesulure Wale (Prince)
Adetogun Adesiyan. A
Adetoro Lekan (Prof.)
Adetunji Solomon A.
Adewole Gerrard (Mr)
Adeyanju Dayo (Dr.)
Adeyemi Adejisola Yetunde
Adeyemi Adesola Oluwaseun 
Adeyemi Adewale Fatai
Adeyemi Adewale Fatai (Mr)
Adeyemi Emmanuel (Mr)
Adeyemi Fred Olu (Prince)

Adeyemi Fred Tobi 
Adeyemi Yemi A. (Olori)
Adiat Ramon O (Mr)
Adoh Patience 
Adu Lawrence
Aduloju Temi
Agbali T.
Agbalu Tobiloba Olaide
Aghemelo Ofure
 Agholor Kingsley (Dr.)
Agwu Mercy
Ahar Josephine
Aisen Olabisi (Prof. Mrs)
Aiyeki Eghosa
Ajagunna Adebanke Mayomi
Ajayi Betty Bolaji
Ajayi Ibukun Busayo
Ajayi Victor Olusola
Ajidag
Ajokolo O.
Akadri S. Jumoke
Akadri S. Jumoke
 Akande Fatai
 Akie J. O. (Pharm.)
Akinbanure Richard Kanmi (Rt. Hon)
Akinbobola Akinshola 
Akinbodewa (Dr. & Mrs.,Timeless Music Nigeria)

Akinbodewa A. A. (Dr.)
Akinbodewa Gladys O.
Akinbote Davies (Labour Party Chairman Ondo West LG)

Akinbowale Benson Joel
Akindeye Rufus Abiodun 
Akindojutimi Wilson
Akinduro F. A. (Rev.)
Akinduro F. A. (Rev.)
Akindutire John Bankol
Akinfe Fola (Chief)
Akingbule Yetunde
Akingbulugbe Ebenezer
Akinjayeju Abiodun Anthony(Mr)
Akinkuade Mathew Akinwale
Akinkuade Mathew Akinwale (Mr)
Akinkugbe Olufemi (Pst.)
Akinkugbe Taiwo Olakunle
Akinkuole Wole Benson (Chief)
Akinlolu Yemisi
Akinlose Ernest (Chief)
Akinlosotu Johnson O. (Hon.)
Akinmurele Folayomi (Otunba)
Akinola A.O
Akinrinlola F.F
Akinruli Stephen (Mr. & Mrs.)
Akinseye Aarinola (Dr.) 

Akinseyin Ibrahim (Hon.)
Akinsola Akinyemi R. 
Akintade Alexander 
Akintade Nathaniel 
Akintelure Tubokun 
Akintunde Akin (pst.)
Akintunde Akin (pst.)
Akinwale Folasade Grace
Akinwande Ayodeji
Akinwande Solomon
Akinyemi Adebayo O.
Akinyoyenu Felix Modupe
Akpan Emem(Mrs)
Akpovi Samuel (Prof)
Alade Olu
Aladekoyi Opeyemi
Aladenola (Pharm.)
Ale Joseph 
Alhamdu
Alikah Innocent
Aliyu Anthony
Aliyu Patience O. 
Amamchukwu Francis
Amos Ayegbusi (Pharm.)
Aniekwu Nkoli Ijeoma 
Anthony Abiodun 
Aogo Microfinance Bank Ltd
Arogunjo W. A (Prof)
Ashaolu Ibikunle J. (Pharm.)
Austine- Uwandu Keona
Austine-Uwandu Kaima
Awe J.O (Mr)
Awopeju Folasade
Awopeju Folasade (Mrs)
Awosika Akinlose (Engr.)
Awosika Siji Isaac
Awoyemi Olakunle (Mrs)
Ayodeji Gbenga (Chief)
Ayodele Helen M.
Ayodele M.O
Ayokunle
Ayoola Yetunde Akinbi
Azeez Aderemi 
Babalola
Babalola Ademola (Prince)
Babalola Adeola
Babalola Alexander Ademola
Babalola Oluwatosin
Babatunde J.
Babatunde Kehinde (Pharm.)
Bada Oluwadare Ayobami
Badaiki A.D. (Prof.)
Badaiki Blessing (Miss)
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Badeaje Roland (Chief)
Badewa (Chief)
Badru J. O. (Pharm.)
Bagudu Ernest (Comrade)
Bagudu Ernestina (Miss)
Bagudu Queen (Mrs)
Balogun Kehinde
Balogun Olabode
Bamidele & Sons Ventures
Bankole O. P. (Pharm.)
Bassey Christiana
Bewaji Temitope (Boltem Nig, Ltd)
Boluwatife A. P.
Borokini Andrew Adetokunbo
Bose (Dr.)
Braimoh Ganiyu Adeleke 
Caroline A.
Chukwu Ada. G
Chukwu Princess A.
Chukwudebe Uche
Chukwudike Praise
Cletus Leo
Dada Peter (The Punch
Damilola Akinwale Isaac
Daniel
Daodu Felix Tunde
Daramola Motunrayo 
Dinehin F. A.(Dr.)
Double Elevation Nig. Limited
Dr. Fidel Diyyo
Ekimogun Micro-Finance
Elegbe Demola
Emhonyon Ehi
Enato Ehijie (Prof.)
Enesi Samuel S. 
Ezekiel Andrew 
Ezeokoli Augustus
Fabusuyi Abraham  O. 
Fadayomi Dipo (Dr.)
Fadele Ayodele O. (Mr)
Fagbule Odunayo (Mr)
Famakinde Akintoye A. (Pharm.)
Famutimi Oluwole Raphael
Fasoranti Kehinde 
Fasoranti S. Bukola
Fawehinmi Tayo (Hon)
Fed Govt Coll Idoani 1994 Set
Feyisola A.
Giwa Babatunde
Gold Adejoke
Grace Bolade
Guiss Papa Banga (Mr)
Hilary (Pharm.)

Homaj Secondary School Ondo
Host Tech/Diamond Transfer
Hrm Oba A. A Aderinkinwo
HRM Oba Lawrence Adekiesoye
Ibiwoye Dotun
Ibrahim Sanni Bashiru
Idahosa Ighee
Ifetoye Caleb
Igbekoyi R. A. Chief
Igboin Brian 
Ighedosa) Stephena Udin Chief (Dr)
Ighodaro Monday
Ighoroje Ahbor (Prof.)
Igwe Cosmas . N
Igwem Chika
Igwem Chukwuebuka
Igwem Mawutor Joy
Igwem Yeoman 
Ike Melvin Tobechukwu
Imonghan Wilson (Dr.)
Irinyenikan T. A. (Dr.)
Iseghohi Ehi P. (Prince)
Iwajomo Olubunmi Daniel
Izibili Lucky
James Adeyemi Babatope (Dr.)
James Bosede 
Jamil Abdallah
Jeff  Agboola (Dr. (Mrs)
Joel Benson A.
Johnson
Johnson Dayo (Vanguard)
Justice Amin (Pharm.)
Kasali Kehinde
Kehinde C. O.
Kiksolyn Ventures
Kolawole A. S (Mr & Mrs)
Komolafe Oluwatoyin
Kuteyi Funke
Lasekan O.G.
Lateef Taofeek
Layode Folake
Leisure Spring Hotel
Makinde Dolapo
Makinde Fola 
Manoah Olowo 
Matthew Ezeani .O
Matthew Kehinde 
Mbaba Victor
Mbagwu Ekene James
Mbakwe Don .C
Metulukoro Rotimi F.
Moshobalaje Ayo
Mr. & Mrs Faleye

Musefiu Tiamiyu Adebisi
Nazzal Tyser
Ndianaekwu Jude (Chief Dr.)
Nigerian Progressive Leaders Ondo City
Nigerian Society Of Engineering
Nsah N. Mercy
Nsah N. Mercy (Miss)
Nwoha Umunna Polycarp (Prof.)
Obadife Pius
Obhahimejele Hilary
Obi W. A. (Col.)
Odewole Victor
Odigie V. I. (Prof.)
Odiru Austin T. O. 
Odoh Francis
Odubote Biyi
Odum Kalu Etea
Ogundairo Oluwatosin A (Mr)
Ogundairo Oluwatosin A.
Ogundegbola F. B. (Chief)
Ogundele Oluwafemi
Ogunjemiyo Olabode (Pharm.)
Ogunleye Princess Ade
Ogunmakin Kolawole
Ogunmodede
Ogunmokun Bunmi
Ogunmokun Bunmi (Mrs)
Ogunmoyola Olu Ojo (DPO Funbi Fagun, Ondo)

Ogunsola Adenike
Ojo Idowu
Ojo Olamide Sunday
Oke Akinola Oluwatosin
Oke Akinola Oluwatosin(Mr)
Okhae Kelly R.
Okiei Benedette Ndudi (Dr.)
Okike Ola N. (Dr.)
Okoli Nelson Tochukwu (Neto Store, Akure)
Okolie Ngozi Paulinius 
Okonkwo Innocent
Okonkwo Sabinus
Okonofua Best
Okonofua Daisy
Okonofua Ivie
Okonofua Onomen (Dr.)
Okoro Peter Blessed
Okpani Anthony O. U. (Prof.)
Okunbo Bisoye
Okunlola Oluyemi A (Mr)
Okunlola Oluyemi A.
Okunriboye Niran A. 
Oladokun Aderinsola 
Olafusi  R. O
Olafusi R. O.
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Olagbende Odudayo V (Mr)
Olagbende Odundayo V. 
Olagoke Sunday
Olagunju Lekan
Olaibi Adebiyi
Olaide  Ibrahim Yusuf (Mr)
Olaide, Ibrahim Yusuf
Olajide Latif
Olajube Monday Vincent
Olajuyigbe Ebenezer
Olakanmi
Olaleye Olusola T. (Pharm.)
Olanisimi Robert
Olaniyi Anthony
Olaniyi Anthony
Olaniyi J.O. (Pst.)
Olanrewaju Toyin N. (Mrs)
Olaoluwa Esther
Olapoja A. A.
Olarewaju Kemisola Vivian
Olarewaju Toyin
Olatunde
Olatunji Kehinde
Ologere Bunmi
Oloja J .T. Akinbilege Of Ajegbale
Olonite Oluwafemi (Pharm.)
Oloyede Rasheed Olanshile
Olubobokun Ademola (Col.)
Olubodun Omotayo Marcus
Oluboyede Elizabeth
Olukare Of Ikare HRM Oba Akadri Momoh
Oluwafemi Yinka Doris (Dr.)
Oluwaniyi Victoria
Oluwasegun Job

Oluwasise A.
Oluwatayo B. D. (Pharm.)
Oluwatayo Temitope (Mr)
Omojola John A. B. (Pharm.)
Omolaiye H. O.
Omolaiye H. O.
 Omolaiye H. O.
Omole Chuks
Omole Chuks
Omoniyi Olusegun Olumide
Omoniyi Olusegun Olumide
Omoniyi Sylvester Ade
Omoniyi Sylvester Ade
Omoniyi Sylvester Ade
Omonkhua Akhere  A. (Dr.) 
Omosegbon
Omosegbon
Omotehinse Daniel.O
Omotehinse Daniel.O
Omotinugbon Kola
Omotinugbon Kola(Mr)
Omowade O.
Onuoha Stephen
Orimijupa T. O.
Orimijupa Wale (Arc.)
Ornguze Vivian
Osadolor G . O (Mr)
Osadolor Gabriel Orhion
Osasere Igbinovia R.
Osedwins Igwem C. 
Osewa T.Y
Oshode Abiodun (Zenith Bank)
Osungbemiro Nelson
Ovenseri George

Ade Adeniyi (Otunba)
Adejjuyigbe Olajide Richard 
Adekanbi Femi
Adenodi Olu (Barr.)
Adeyankinnu Gbakinro Jacob
Akinfolarin Mayowa (Hon.)
Akinfolarin Williams
Akinjayeju Abiodun Anthony
Akinjo Kolade Victor (Hon.)
Akintade Kehinde
Akintade Queen Folashade
Akinwolemiwa C. F. (Hon.)
Ambassador Unity Club Ondo

Balogun Adebisi M. (Prof.)
Bamigboye A. A. (Prof.)
Beejey Integrated Services Limited
Elegbe Chiefs In Ondo Kingdom
First Bank Nigeria
Fadayomi Yele (Mr. & Mrs.)
Flory Mummy Investment Limited
Gilbert John Olusola
Iyoho Olusholape
Ilesanmi Abiodun (Prof)
Mimiko  Abass (Dr.)
Nwuba Roseangela (Dr)
Ogunmusire Larry (Pst. Chairman Okitipupa LG)

Ovienria Wilson A. (Dr.)
Owa Olorunfemi
Owolabi Toyin
Oyebade Bodurin
Oyedokunbo K.
Oyefabi Glory O.
Oyelola Ikeoluwa T. 
Oyinleye Atinuke
Oyolola  Ikeoluwa T. (Mrs)
Precious Specialist Hospital ( Dr. Gbala)
Safty Signature
Saleh Seth
Salemcity A . J.
Sede Peter Dr.
Shittu Alidu Gabriel
Shittu Steve M. O. 
Shuaib Ajoke
Sogeke Kikelomo
Sowole James
St. Loius Secondary School
Taiwo Emmanuel E. (Arc.)
Thomas-Eshokhai Adebimbola
Udechukwu Jude
Udensi C. Blessing
Udi S. O. (Rev.)
Ujevwe John Esegba
Umeora O. U. J.
Wakoyi Nigeria Limited
Watsan, Akure
Yakubu Rasaq
Yusuf Omolayo
Zakky Azzzzuka

Okogbenin Sylvanus (Dr)            
Okonofua Patience
Okunrinboye Remi (Dist. Senator)
Olatunji Segun (Mr. & Mrs.)
Oluwafemi Akintayo Oluwafemi (Pst. Dr.)
Olotu Ademola Olusola (Dr)
Oshindare Victor (Mr)
Smorterc Scientific Nigeria Limited
Sutton Banke
Trns
WEMA Bank Plc
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GOLD

Adebo-Joseph (Mr. & Mrs.)
Adegoke Segin (Chief)
Ademujimi Kola (Dr.)
Adeniyi Ade
Adesope Kamilu (Mr)
Adeyanju Dayo (Hon. Dr.)
Akiavic Consultancy Limited
Akingbule Foundation (Chief Dr.)
Akinkiotu Toyin (Barr.)
Akinsade Ambrose Bolu (High Chief)
Akintade Denis . A. (Prof.)
Akinbobola Simeon (Mr)
Akinfolarin Robert

Adeduro Johnson Olusola (HigChief)
Akinlaja Joseph (Hon.)
Akinmade Kayode (Hon.)
Akinsoyinu Ifedayo Olugbenga 
Akintade Ayokunle (Mr. & Mrs)
Akintade Lara 
Akintade Lola (Dr. Mrs.)
Akintade Titi 
Algon Ondo State 
Amos Oyewunmi Oladunjoye
Anenih Tony (Chief)
Fadayomi Noah Olutola (Otunba)

Amadi Jossy (Mr. & Mrs.)
Ayodeji S. A. (Chief)
Deji Of Akure HRM Oba Aladetoyinbo Aladelusi, 
Odundun II
Egbarin Val (Mr. & Mrs.)
Egbuchiri Iyke (Mr. & Mrs.)
Eremah Godwin (Mr. & Mrs.)
Egboh Mike (Prof)
Faborode M. O (Prof)
George Grace
HRM Oba Julius Oluwole Akintimehin
Iguodalo W. A. (Dr.)
Ikhisemojie Timmy O. (Arc.)

Hospital Management Board
James Folajimi 
Jegede  Eyitayo (SAN)
Kuteyi Waheed Ajisola
Mafiana Chiedu Felix (prof.)
Fasoranti Fredrick
Ogundipe Akinyele (Chief)
Ogunyemi Wole (Pst.)
Okohue jude (Chief)
Okonofua Friday E. (Prof.)
Olasehinde Kola (Hon.)
Oluboyo Lasisi Olugbenga

HIGH CHIEF (DR) I. F. AKINTADE, the Saibi Gogou of Ondo Kingdom and Aare Amuludun of Ifetedo  
Donated the 'HIGH CHIEF (DR) I. F. AKINTADE Faculty of Basic Clinical Sciences Building' to the University 

worth over 120 Million Naira to be completed before December 31, 2016 

Proposed High Chief (Dr) I. F. Akintade Faculty of Basic Clinical Sciences

Kaliku Nduka
Musa Mukaila Ayinde (Hon.)
Njoku A. C. (Dr.)
Ogunniyi Dayo (Hon.)
Ojo Michael Akin (Prof)
Omolaja Bade (Dr.)
Ondo Amity Club
Olamide Olamuyiwa (Mr)
Onokerhorhaye A.G. (Prof)
Osazua Andrew (Mr. & Mrs.)
Rosemary Ogu
Rotimi Adelola
Vicmond Ade Ent. Ltd

PLATINUM

Ondo East LGA
Ondo West LGA
Osemawe In Council
Osemawe of Ondo Kingdom 
HRM Oba Dr. Adesimbo Victor Kiladejo Jilo III 
Oseni Aderemi (Engr.)
Oyebade Funke, mni (Dr. Mrs.)
Oyetibo Omotayo (SAN)
Okebukola Peter(Prof)
W.H.A.R.C

CAPITAL PROJECT DONATIONS
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ITEM DONATIONS

Further donations can be made to The University of Medical Sciences at one of the following accounts: 
First Bank Plc. Account No. 2030056765 and Zenith Bank, Plc. Account No. 1014662945. 

INVITATION TO LAUNCHING OF FRIENDS OF UNIMED FUND AND NETWORK IN ABUJA

DATE: October 18, 2016 
VENUE: Sheraton Hotel, ABUJA

TIME: 11am. 

OBAIJAIGBE CHRISTIAN - 1 Century 2000 Stabilizer
OMOLAIYE H. O - 1 Hp Core 13 Laptop

CHIEF WOLE AKINBEBIYE - 150 6” Building Blocks
MR. BAYO OLOTU - 20 Nos 5-Ethernet Ports MikroTik Routers with High Power Access Point

FURTHER DONATIONS
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FAMILY BACKGROUND
hief (Dr.) Isaac Folorunso Akintade was born in Ondo 
City, Ondo State on August 15, 1942 into two 
prominent families in Ondo Kingdom.  His father, late C

Pa Akintade Fawehinmi, was a direct descendant of the 
famous and dreaded Lisa Alujannu while his mother, Princess 
Aderosotu was a daughter of the late Oba Jisomosun 
Adekolurejo of Ondo Kingdom.

EDUCATION
Chief (Dr.) Akintade started his elementary education at St. 
Andrew's Primary School Ondo in 1950 and obtained his 
Elementary School Leaving Certificate in 1957.  He later 
proceeded to the local Authority Modern School in 1959 and 
graduated in 1961. In his quest for more knowledge, he again 
attended the Federal Government Teacher's Training College 
Ilesha, Osun State where he had his Grade II Teachers 
Certificate before travelling to the United States of America 
(USA) for further studies.

While in USA, he attended Armstrong High School 
Washington DC, and went to the Federal City College, now 
university of the District of Columbia where he bagged is 
Bachelor's Degree in Economics in 1972.  He was later given 
an American Scholarship to study at the Western Illinois 
University, Macomb, Illinois, where he obtained his Masters 
Degree in Quantitative and Analytical Economics with Honors 
in the year 1974 and had AIB Final Certificate from the 
American Institute of Banking, Washington D.C in 1976.

WORK EXPERIENCE
Chief (Dr.) Akintade returned to Nigeria in 1976 and started 
working at the Research Department of the Central Bank of 
Nigeria (CBN). While at the CBN, Chief (Dr.) Akintade was 
saddled with the responsibility of collating and analyzing data 
from al the banks in the Federation so as to determine the 
money in circulation and any other information to determine 
the condition of the Nigerian economy.

Chief (Dr.) Akintade moved to the Federal Ministry of Trade in 
1978 to acquire experience in the running of businesses in 
order to fulfill his lifelong desire of running his own business.  
While at the Federal Ministry of Commerce, Chief Akintade 
was in charge of Import License for the whole Federation.  He 
was also the Chairman of the Import Quota Allocation 
Committee.  He finally retired from Government Service in 
1983.

All his life, Chief (Dr.) Akintade has always struggled to help 
his people and uplift their welfare.  Indeed, his life has been a 
life of service to his people, especially the down trodden. So 

Chief (Dr.) Isaac Folorunso 

Akintade
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immediately after his stint at the Central Bank and the Federal Ministry of Commerce, he joined Famak 
Nigeria Ltd, a company he co-founded, as an Executive Director.  He is currently the Managing Director 
and Chief Executive of the company.  As a result of his high interest in banking and his desire to assist 
some of his people who could not get credit facilities from the conventional banks, Chief (Dr.) Akintade 
also co-founded the Ekimogun Microfinance Bank where he is the current Chairman of the Bank.

One of the most enduring contributions of Chief (Dr.) Akintade to the economic well being of his people, 
especially those in the transport sector, is the establishment of the Famak Line.  Chief (Dr.) Akintade is 
the current Patron of the Ondo State Branch of the National Union of Road Transport Workers (NURTW). 
He has helped so many drivers in Ondo State own vehicles by way of giving them buses at highly 
subsidized rates.  In addition to the above, Chief (Dr.) Akintade has also distributed so many mini taxi 
cabs to the indigenes of Ondo City to ease the township transportation.

As a result of his prowess in the transport sector, Chief (Dr.) Akintade was made the Chairman of the 
National Association of Road Transport Owners (NARTO) Ondo State and later the Chairman of the body 
in the entire Western Zone in Nigeria.  He later became the Deputy National President of NARTO in 
Nigeria as well as the President NARTO Cooperative Society in Lagos Sate before bowing out of the 
organization.

CHIEF (DR.) ISAAC AKINTADE AS A POLITICIAN
Having seen great potential in Chief (Dr.) Akintade, the late Oba F. I. Adesanoye, the paramount Ruler of 
Ondo Kingdom then, invited Chief (Dr.) Akintade to join politics so as to assist Ondo Kingdom achieve its 
maximum potential in politics.  He later invited the current Governor of Ondo State, His Excellency, Dr. 
Olusegun Mimiko and I into his bedroom where he placed the hands of the Governor into my hands and 
blessed us saying that the politics of Ondo State was in our hands.

Chief (Dr.) Akintade became the Leader of Labour Party in Ondo Kingdom and Chairman of Elders' 
Council of the Party in Ondo State. Chief (Dr.) Akintade is proud to have led Labour Party that broke the 
jinx and resulted in the installation of the first Ondo Kingdom born Executive Governor of Ondo State in 
the person of Dr. Olusegun Mimiko.

Chief (Dr.) Akintade served on the Board of Owena Oil and Gas until December 2006 when he resigned 
to join the Labour Party.  Chief (Dr.) Akintade served as a Director of Odua Investment Company until 
December 2013 and he is the current Chairman of Odua Investment Co. Ltd. 

AWARDS
Chief (Dr.) Akintade is an entrepreneur per excellence.  He has contributed immensely to the 
development of Ondo State in particular and Nigeria in general.

In recognition of his achievements in business, he has been bestowed with so many awards; some of 
which are the following:

?Men of Achievement Award by Corporate Press Services Inc. in 1966.

?ECOWAS Men of Integrity Award by the Intra West Africa Communication in 1998.

?Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business Administration by Stanton University, Florida USA.

?Successful Entrepreneurship Award by the Rotary Club of Ondo in 2008.

?Ondo State Businessman of the year Award by the Ondo State Chapter of the NUJ in 1996.
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?Merit Award as the Most Humanitarian Person in 2003 by the Federation of Ekimogun Students 
Union of Federal Polytechnics, Offa Kwara State Chapter.

?Merit Award for Immerse Contributions to the Progress of Nigerian Students by National Association 
of Nigerian Students (NANS) in 2003.

?Man of the Year 1999 by UNIFEC, Obafemi Awolowo University, Ile-Ife, Osun State.

?Award of Erudite Politician of the year 2009 by Ile-Alayo-Bration of Ondo State Radiovision 
Corporation (OSRC).

CLUBS AND ASSOCIATION MEMBERSHIP
All work and no play makes Jack a dull boy, says an old adage.  Chief (Dr.) Akintade refuses to take an 
exemption from this adage by combining his busy work life with so many social and relaxation activities.  
He belongs to many social clubs and association.  He is:

?The President of Prestige Circle Club, Ondo.
?A Member “C” Circle Club of Ondo
?The Patron of Ifedayo Unity Club, Ondo
?The Patron of Unique Sisters club, Ondo
?The Patron of Owo Ladies Club, Ondo
?The Patron Women of Substance Akure, Ondo State
?The President of Cream Club of Chiefs, Ondo
?Grand Patron of Junior Chamber International (JCI), Adeyemi College of Education, Ondo Chapter.

PHILANTHROPIC ACTIVITIES
In his bid to uplift the wellbeing of so many students in Ondo Kingdom in particular and Nigeria in 
general, Chief (Dr.) Akintade has awarded without publicity, scholarships to so many indigent students 
and has assisted in one way or the other, many students travelling overseas for further studies.  It is, 
perhaps, in recognition of this fact that many student bodies have bestowed on him several awards as 
stated above.

CHIEF (DR.) AKINTADE IN TRADITIONAL INSTITUTION
Chief (Dr.) Akintade has bagged many traditional chieftaincy titles in recognition of the enormous roles 
he has played in the society including the following:

?Saibi Gogou of Ondo Kingdom
?High Chief Aare of Atunluse of Ifetedo, Osun State.
?Bashorun of Iju, Ondo State
?Bobajiro of Kurugbene, Igbokoda, Ondo State

CHIEF (DR.) AKINTADE AS A DEVOUT CHRISTIAN
Chief (Dr.) Folorunso Akintade is a devout Christian.  He is a member of Young Men Christian 
Association (YMCA) of St. Stephen's Cathedral, Ondo and also a Jerusalem Pilgrim (JP).  Chief (Dr.) 
Akintade is happily married with God living and highly successful children and grandchildren.
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For additional information, please contact 

Professor Abimbola Akintade, 
Director of Advancement and Documentation, UNIMED  

Tel: +234 908 501 8707;
Email: aakintade@unimeds.edu.ng  

OR
Ms. Princess Chukwu, 

Fund Raising Program Officer, UNIMED  
Tel: +2348023023682

Email: pchukwu@unimeds.edu.ng

Dr (Mrs.) Olufunke Oyebade, mni, 
Registrar 


